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Profit for the year rose by 5.3% to HK$44.9 million (2022:
HK$42.6 million). Excluding the Government subsidies of HK$41.6
million (2022: HK$58.9 million) for the year, profit for the year
was HK$3.3 million (2022: loss of HK$16.3 million), a turnaround
from a loss from the previous financial year.

Revenue was HK$3,024.2 million (2022: HK$2,881.9 million),
increased by 4.9%.

The Group maintained a healthy financial position with bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents of HK$646.8 million (2022:
HK$557.1 million) as at 31 March 2023.

The Group had no bank borrowings and nil gearing ratio as at 31
March 2023.

Basic earnings per share were HK34.64 cents (2022: HK32.91
cents), increased by 5.3%.

Final dividend of HK40.0 cents per share and special final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per share were proposed, representing a total
dividend per share for the year of HK63.0 cents and a payout ratio
of approximately 182%.
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Interim results announcement
29 November 2022

Paid date of the interim dividend
30 December 2022

Annual results announcement
30 June 2023

Closure of Register of Members
— Annual general meeting
1 September 2023 to
7 September 2023
(both days inclusive)
— Proposed final dividend and special final dividend
14 September 2023 to
18 September 2023
(both days inclusive)

Annual general meeting
7 September 2023

Payable date of the final dividend and special final dividend
On or before 5 October 2023
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
increased by 4.9% year-on-year, to HK$3,024.2 million (2022:
HK$2,881.9 million). Profit attributable to equity shareholders rose
by 5.3% to HK$44.9 million (2022: HK$42.6 million). Excluding
Government subsidies of HK$41.6 million for the year and
HK$58.9 million for the previous financial year, profit for the year
was HK$3.3 million, a turnaround from a loss from the previous
financial year. Gross profit margin increased to 8.5% (2022: 7.7 %).
Basic earnings per share amounted to HK34.64 cents (2022:
HK32.91 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK40.0 cents
(2022: HK40.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend of
HK5.0 cents (2022: Nil) per share for the year ended 31 March
2023. Together with the interim dividend of HK18.0 cents (2022:
HK25.0 cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to HK63.0 cents (2022:
HK65.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution of
approximately 182% of the Group’s profit for the year. The
proposed final and special final dividends will be paid on or before
Thursday, 5 October 2023 to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company at the close of
business on Monday, 18 September 2023.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The past twelve months have seen extremes of the pandemic
situation in both Hong Kong and Mainland China. In Hong Kong,
the period began with the city in the midst of the ‘fifth wave’ of
COVID-19 outbreak. The government’s anti-pandemic efforts
involved stringent social distancing measures that once again
posed challenges to mass restaurant chains like Fairwood. These
measures began to be eased or removed in the final quarter of
2022, and by early 2023 all COVID-19 measures had been
cancelled. Meanwhile, in Mainland China, the pandemic recovery
played out very differently. Extremely strict anti-pandemic
measures, often involving district-wide lockdowns, remained in
place until almost the end of 2022. This was followed by the
abrupt dismantling of all COVID-19 controls, leading to
widespread outbreaks of COVID-19 across China in late 2022 and
early 2023 that disrupted economic activity.
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Despite these exceptional circumstances, overall the trajectory of
the year for Fairwood has been a positive one. Although the
Group experienced a decrease in customer traffic by comparison
with the previous year, mainly as a result of the fifth wave of
COVID-19, this was offset by a gratifying increase in the average
spending of each guest once normal dining resumed. Overall,
Fairwood reported a positive performance and a solid increase in
its top line results. Although performance had not yet recovered
to pre-COVID levels by year-end, the positive trend is clear.

The return to normality post-COVID was boosted by the launch of
the Group’s 50" Anniversary (“50A") celebrations from October
2022 onwards. The entire 50A campaign was a well-planned and
orchestrated event that looked back on Fairwood’s long history in
Hong Kong, triggering many warm nostalgic memories among
long-time residents. At the same time, the campaign introduced
many younger diners to the long and vibrant Fairwood heritage.
Among the highlights of the 50A campaign were the launch of a
special 50A logo, used in conjunction with the original Fairwood
‘clown face’ logo, instore anniversary décor that included
decorations, packaging and staff uniforms, a series of 50A posters
featuring stories by Fairwood staff, and a 90-second TV
commercial. The anniversary was also widely promoted on
Fairwood'’s own and third-party social media channels, achieving
an estimated 5.2 million views in total.
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One particularly successful innovation of the 50A campaign was
the relaunch of seven nostalgic meals from years gone by. These
proved exceptionally popular and generated record-breaking sales.
One Fairwood store in Mong Kok was also given a ‘vintage-look’
makeover for the duration of the campaign, a move that also
struck a chord with diners. Overall, the 50A proved to be not only
a celebration of everything that Fairwood has meant to Hong
Kong over half a century, but also a very effective sales driver and
brand promotional tool. It underpinned Fairwood’s strong recovery
in the second half of the year.
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Fairwood is always looking to generate consumer interest and
excitement by introducing new dishes and meal sets, and it
continued to launch these regularly throughout the year. Major
innovations introduced in the second half of the year included
popular new Claypot Rice, Mixian and Pandan dishes for lunch,
which played significant parts in pushing up the average spend of
diners. Meanwhile, a number of new items introduced to
breakfast and tea menus were bread-based, building on
Fairwood's acquisition of its own bakery two years ago. The
acquisition has continued to prove its worth, producing exciting
bread products that have enabled Fairwood to expand its offerings
in this popular field. Several dinner products also helped push the
dinner segment forward. Other popular innovations for this
segment were the CNY Combo, such as the Chicken with Sichuan
Spicy Sauce in Claypot with Puff Pastry.

Fairwood aims to keep its brand fresh and relevant to each new
generation of diners in Hong Kong, and to attract younger diners
to its restaurants. The launch of its Fairwood app was a major step
in this direction, focused squarely on a generation of diners who
want information and ordering power in the palms of their hands.
The app was launched in conjunction with a series of attractive
promotional offers and struck an immediate chord: over 500,000
members had signed up for the app by year-end.
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Alongside this, Fairwood has continued to roll out its new fourth-
generation store design. The new design is especially appealing to
young people, and involves a reduction in the traditional Fairwood
orange alongside a minimalist and contemporary design vibe. The
stores also incorporate the latest digital menu boards and other
innovations associated with contemporary trends. Elements of this
core design will eventually be incorporated in all Fairwood
restaurants, with adaptations based on each store’s local
environment and clientele.

The last few years have been especially challenging for the F&B
industry as costs have spiralled upwards. In particular, food costs
have risen dramatically, while the serious labour shortage in Hong
Kong has brought its own pressures to bear on restaurant
operators like Fairwood. Fairwood has been managing these
challenges with a set of diversified initiatives that address every
aspect of expenditure. For some of its key staple food items, such
as eggs, it has increased its reliance on direct imports from trusted
suppliers, reducing the per-item cost accordingly. It has continued
to optimise and reduce its packaging, particularly when it comes
to takeout meals. Further productivity enhancements have been
introduced in the Master Kitchen where much food is prepared in
a centralised location. Digitalisation initiatives that not only help
enhance efficiency but also improve the customer experience have
continued to be rolled out. Rental lease renewals have been
opportunities for Fairwood to negotiate with landlords for better
rental deals.

R7xa FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The challenge of staff retention has been a tougher nut to crack,
with turnover rates for catering staff very high across the industry.
Post-COVID, Fairwood was able to launch several staff
appreciation initiatives, which included company BBQ, cake-
cutting celebrations at all stores, and visits to movies and theme
parks for staff. At the same time our special 50A staff appreciation
initiative, which involved collecting and sharing positive staff
stories in a colourful poster format, helped reinforce the value
Fairwood places on its employees. The result was an enhanced
sense of belonging among many staff. This was boosted by an
improved learning and development platform launched this year.
Now fully digitalised, Fairwood's staff training programmes offer
new skills and potential career paths that are proving attractive to
many. These initiatives have definitely given Fairwood an edge in
today’s challenging labour market.

Hong Kong

Fairwood's fast food restaurant chain in Hong Kong performed
steadily in the year, with performance improving as the year went
on due to the relaxation of pandemic measures and the highly
successful 50A campaign. Same Store Sales Growth (“SSSG")
improved year on year, accompanied by a healthy increase in
average spending per guest. The SSSG was approximately 5%.
Demand for takeout meals dropped after COVID restrictions were
eased but remain strong, indicating that takeout food sales are
likely to remain an important segment of business in the
foreseeable future. They sit currently at around 36% of total sales,
higher than pre-COVID, and are remaining steady. Meanwhile,
recovery at the Group's specialty restaurants has been slower, as
this dining segment was particularly hard-hit by COVID-19.
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Mainland China

The Group’s Mainland China operations, focused in Shenzhen and
the Greater Bay Area, were impacted by the country’s anti-
pandemic policies during the year. The SSSG was approximately
negative 7% in local currency amid COVID. Long periods of
lockdown affected operations significantly, while the rapid
dismantling of pandemic restrictions led to outbreaks of COVID-19
that impacted staffing levels. Despite this, the Mainland China
operations have continued to take positive steps towards a
scalable, profitable business model suited to the Mainland
environment. With a fully localised management team, the Group
is continuing to open stores that are often significantly smaller
than their Hong Kong counterparts, and with a higher proportion
of delivery sales. Although these stores may have a lower sales
intensity, they also have the ability to deliver higher profits when
well-placed and managed.

NETWORK

During the year under review, the Group opened 12 new stores,
of which 8 were in Hong Kong and 4 in Mainland China. In the
same period it closed 10 underperforming stores, 8 in Hong Kong
and 2 in Mainland China. As a result, at 31 March 2023 it was
operating with 179 stores, 157 in Hong Kong and 22 in Mainland
China.

The Group's Fairwood fast food restaurant chain in Hong Kong
finished the year with 147 stores, after 7 were opened and 5
closed during the year. As for its specialty restaurants, at year-end
there were a total of 10 in operation: 3 ASAP, 4 Taiwan Bowl, and
3 The Leaf Kitchen.

Fairwood
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

It has been gratifying this year to be able to restart face-to-face
community initiatives that had been put on hold during the height
of the pandemic. Our Fairwood Care for Seniors Card has
continued to go from strength to strength, with membership
numbers now having broken the 400,000 mark. This was achieved
on the back of a range of new card promotions which have
proved very attractive to elderly diners.

Heartwarming Food Donation programme, under Fairwood Care
for the Community Programme, was conducted in 14 stores, in
which food and daily necessities were distributed to the needy.
Another activity under the programme, the Joyous Meal with
Seniors, took place in 12 stores, when elderly people living alone
were invited to sit down to a Fairwood meal in a warm and
supportive environment.

Also during the year, Fairwood launched a special meal donation
initiative that has proved effective at addressing its Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) responsibilities from two perspectives
simultaneously. The Group introduced a plastic cutlery reduction
initiative under which for every eight ‘cutlery-free actions’ (i.e.
times that a customer selects not to include plastic cutlery in his or
her meal set), Fairwood will donate one meal on behalf of the
customer and a matching donation to those in need. In
partnership with Po Leung Kuk, by year-end (just four months into
the programme) the Group had converted its customers’ cutlery-
free actions into 23,438 meals under the scheme. It has been
especially gratifying to see plastic usage drop and social welfare
increase at the same time.

PROSPECTS

Halfway through 2023, the Hong Kong market is showing
considerable resilience despite threats of a global downturn. The air
of confidence suggests that, for Fairwood, the coming year is likely
to be one of steady recovery after the difficult times of COVID-19.

Within this environment, Fairwood is in a strong position. Its
financial situation is healthy, and it enjoys a steady cash-flow.
Importantly in the current high-interest rate environment,
Fairwood is debt-free and thus unaffected by interest rate risks.
These qualities in a company specialising in lower-cost dining are
significant, especially in a downward economic cycle where more
people are looking for good value dining options.
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On top of this, Fairwood has built a brand that is trusted and
respected in Hong Kong, as our 50A celebrations made clear. The
Fairwood name is associated not simply with value but also with a
better quality of service, and with knowing what customers want.
These are extremely valuable connotations that, among other
things, mean that Fairwood has the ability to price its offerings
higher and to more easily make price adjustments where
necessary. Meanwhile, our debt-free status gives us the ability to
capture profitable investment opportunities should such arise.

We do not expect any let-up in the cost and labour pressures
associated with food ingredients and staff turnover in the year ahead.
However we do have a detailed strategy for cost-saving and
productivity enhancement which has served us well over the years, and
which we will continue to implement in the year ahead. Fairwood has
always kept a tight rein on expenses, and this will not change.

We are optimistic about the progress of our Mainland China
operations in the months ahead. It has been challenging working
on the Mainland to perfect a business model for Fairwood there,
while simultaneously being buffeted by all the complications
associated with COVID-19. But with the ending of COVID-19
controls and the successful operation of several of our stores
there, we believe we are on track for positive results from our
Mainland operations very soon.

As for our small stable of specialty restaurants, full recovery looks set
to be a longer-term goal. The years of COVID-19 restrictions severely
impacted evening dining habits in Hong Kong, and fewer people are
now going out for dinner than was once the case. We will be looking
closely at Hong Kong's mid-level dining scene over the coming
months and seeing how we can best position ourselves in this
changing market. We are fortunate in having the resources available
to consider further targeted investment in this area if needed.

APEEBEAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Hong Kong, 30 June 2023

APPRECIATION

The year under review has certainly been an interesting one. We
can look back on a satisfactory performance and point to many
positive achievements in the past 12 months. These things could
not have been achieved without the dedicated contributions from
many parties. First and foremost, my thanks go out to our
Fairwood management and staff, who have worked together for
the good of the company and of Hong Kong in the face of many
pressures. The remarkable success of our 50A campaign bears
witness to just how much effort and goodwill was contributed by
our staff members.

I would like to pay special tribute to former Fairwood director Mr
Ng Chi Keung, who sadly passed away recently. Mr Ng has served
the Board for over 27 years; he was an influential figure in
building Fairwood into the respected Hong Kong institution it is
today.

| also thank our loyal Fairwood customers, old and new. Fairwood
is here to serve people, and the people we serve are at the heart
of everything we do. | am very grateful for the suppliers and other
business partners we work with, who have played a major part in
helping Fairwood deliver steady, consistent quality on time and at
reasonable cost. Finally, | would like to acknowledge the support
of our shareholders, who have recognised the Group's vision and
potential. With a new post-pandemic era dawning, | am confident
that our shareholders have much to look forward to.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2023, total assets of the Group were HK$2,302.5
million (2022: HK$2,337.3 million). The Group’s net current
liabilities were HK$24.8 million (2022: HK$12.8 million),
represented by total current assets of HK$792.4 million (2022:
HK$769.5 million) against total current liabilities of HK$817.2
million (2022: HK$782.3 million). Current ratio, being the
proportion of total current assets against total current liabilities,
was 1.0 (2022: 1.0). Total equity was HK$680.6 million (2022:
HK$714.2 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2023, the
Group had bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$646.8 million (2022: HK$557.1 million),
representing an increase of 16.1%. Most bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no bank loan and
the gearing ratio was nil, which was calculated based on the total
bank loan over the total equity. The unutilised banking facilities
were HK$260.0 million (2022: HK$335.9 million).

DEPRECIATION

The Group's depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
decreased by HK$1.8 million from HK$90.9 million to HK$89.1
million due to the closure of shops during the year and impairment
recognised in prior years.

The depreciation charges of right-of-use assets, which were
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term in
accordance with HKFRS 16, decreased by HK$18.9 million from
HK$408.4 million to HK$389.5 million. The decrease was primarily
due to the closure of shops during the year and impairment
recognised in prior years.

FINANCE COSTS

During the year, the Group recorded the finance costs of HK$31.7
million (2022: HK$32.4 million). The finance costs represented the
interest expenses accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liabilities.

APEEBEAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 6.4% (2022: 5.7%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, capital expenditure (excluding right-of-use assets)
was approximately HK$104.7 million (2022: HK$74.6 million). The
increase was mainly due to more renovation works for new shops
and existing shops compared to last year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group's financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at banks and other financial assets that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 March 2023, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$0.8 million (2022: HK$0.9 million) and no
bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.

COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2023
were HK$10.3 million (2022: HK$27.0 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2023, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
these guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn down by all
the subsidiaries that are covered by these guarantees, being
HK$88.9 million (2022: HK$88.0 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2023, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 5,600 (2022: 5,700). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$1,020.5 million (2022: HK$1,004.5
million). During the reporting period, the staff cost was net of the
employment support scheme of HK$24.0 million subsidies from
HKSAR Government. Employees’ remuneration is commensurate
with their job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed annually based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.

APEEBEAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 71, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course on
food and beverage management at New York University. After
completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo returned to
Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company. Mr
Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. Mr Lo is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis,
the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited
which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, aged 40, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Francis Lo attended the
School of Computer Science at Carnegie Mellon University. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr Francis Lo held a senior management
position at an overseas restaurant and had over four years of
experience in the food and beverage industry including
management of operations, product development and business
strategy formulation. Mr Francis Lo joined the Company as
Management Trainee in August 2013. He was promoted to
Executive Manager in February 2015 and further to be Specialty
Restaurant General Manager in April 2018. Since 1 January 2019,
he has been appointed as Executive Director of the Company and
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 April
2020. Mr Francis Lo is the son of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, the
Executive Chairman of the Company.

Ms Peggy Lee, aged 52, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Lee obtained her MBA and Bachelor Degree in
Marketing in the U.S.A.. She has over 20 years of experience in
brand building and management, product development, retail and
sales management across different industries. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms Lee had held senior management positions with a
number of well-known companies. Ms Lee joined the Company in
February 2011 and was appointed Executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 75, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
Member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong, the University of
Strathclyde and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of
Business Administration Degree and a Master of Education
Degree. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resource Management and The Hong Kong Professional
Counselling Association. Mr Chan has over 40 years’ experience in
human resources development in public, commercial and
educational sectors and is actively engaged in the professional
development of higher education student affairs practitioners and
high school careers teachers in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 70, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2000. He is a Member of the Remuneration Committee and was
appointed as a Member of Audit Committee on 14 April 2023. Dr
Lau ceased to be a Member of the Nomination Committee on 14
April 2023. Dr Lau holds a Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a
MBA Degree from the University of Calgary in Canada and a
Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He
is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
and the Society of Certified Management Accountants of Canada.
Dr Lau had over 12 years of management and accounting
experience in both the private and public sectors in Canada prior
to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. He was previously an Adjunct
Professor of the College of Business at City University of Hong
Kong, an external member of the School of Business Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University as well as the
Chairman of the Advisory Committee on management and
marketing at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr Lau is
currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of Giordano
International Limited which is listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Mr Peter Wan Kam To, MH, aged 70, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
Member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan
is a Fellow Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr Wan is also the Non-
executive Director of the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council (formerly known as “Financial Reporting Council”). He
was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China
firm with extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. Mr Wan was awarded the Medal of Honour by the
HKSAR Government and conferred the degree of Doctor of Social
Sciences by Hong Kong Metropolitan University in 2022. Mr Wan
is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of several
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely A-Living Smart
City Services Co., Ltd., China Resources Land Limited, Haitong
International Securities Group Limited and KFM Kingdom Holdings
Limited. Mr Wan was an Independent Non-executive Director of
Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited which is listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange until 9 August 2021 and an
Independent Director of China World Trade Centre Co., Ltd.
which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange until November
2022.
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Mr Yip Cheuk Tak, aged 71, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in December 2021. He
was appointed as Members of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company on 14 April 2023. Mr Yip
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong
Kong Baptist University) majoring in Communication in 1978 and
holds Diploma in Social Science. During 1978 to 1988, he was the
Marketing and Advertising Executive for Singer Sewing Machine
Co. Ltd., Buyer and Franchise Manager for 7-Eleven Division and
Operations Vice President for Giordano Limited. In 1992, he began
his career in the PRC and served as General Manager of Tiger
Enterprise Ltd. (Group of Giordano Limited) in South China. In
1994, he was the General Manager of Pizza Hut South China
overseeing the territories of Guangdong, Guangxi and Hainan and
acquired extensive experience in the PRC food and beverage
market. Mr Yip returned to Hong Kong in July 2003 to take up
the post of Chief Executive of Pizza Hut Hong Kong and Macau.
He was appointed Chief Executive of Jardine Restaurant Group,
Hong Kong and New Markets in July 2014 and retired in 2018. Mr
Yip is now serving a number of public offices, namely, Chairman
of Retail Training Advisory Committee of Qualification Framework
under Education Bureau of the HKSAR, the Technical Advisor of
Retail Trade and Member of Industry Consultative Networks for
Retail Industry of Employees Retraining Board, Member of Retail
Trade Training Board of Vocational Training Council, the
Consultant of Retail Industry Commission Advisory Committee of
The Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Ltd, the
Member of HKBU Communication Alumni Association (HKBUCAA)
Executive Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University as well as
an Independent Manager of Incorporated Management
Committee of Queen Elizabeth School Old Student’s Association
Tong Kwok Wah Secondary School.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in presenting its annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F,
TRP Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
177 and 178 of the annual report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business activities and discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Business Review"” and “Prospects”
set out on pages 11 to 19 of this annual report while the risk
management policy is on pages 61 to 66 of the Corporate
Governance Report. The relevant discussions in these sections
form part of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING

As part of the community, the Group strives to support the
environmental protection works, to strictly comply with the
relevant rules and regulations and to consider the material aspects
of our stakeholders. In light of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
comprehensive information as required thereunder relating to our
operating principles on our employees, food quality and safety,
environment and customers will be further discussed in a separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”),
which will be published together with the annual report
2022/2023. The relevant discussions in the ESG Report form part
of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
report, the Board was not aware of any non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and the respective jurisdiction of the place of incorporation of the
Company and subsidiaries that have a significant impact on the
Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, 31% (2022: less than 30%)
of the aggregate amount of purchases were attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers with the largest supplier accounted
for 14% of the Group’s aggregate amount of purchases.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represent less than 30% (2022: less than 30%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

None of the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”), their
close associates, or any shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the issued share capital the Company, had a
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set
out in the financial statements on pages 78 to 178 of this annual
report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HK18.0 cents (2022: HK25.0 cents) per
share was paid on 30 December 2022.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK40.0 cents (2022: HK40.0 cents) per share and a special final
dividend of HK5.0 cents (2022: Nil) per share for the year ended
31 March 2023.

More information about the Company’s dividend policy is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group made charitable
and other donations totalling HK$67,000 (2022: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 28(b) to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity Shareholders was HK$371,073,000 (2022:
HK$446,048,000). After the end of the reporting period, Directors
proposed a final dividend of HK40.0 cents (2022: HK40.0 cents)
per share and a special final dividend of HK5.0 cents (2022: Nil)
per share amounting to HK$58,298,000 (2022: HK$51,821,000).
The dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Peggy Lee

Mak Yee Mei (resigned on 6 July 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Peter Wan Kam To

Yip Cheuk Tak

Ng Chi Keung (passed away on 8 March 2023)

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(2) of the Company, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To shall retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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(@) EARQFWEZS

Personal interests

&5 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000
BB Lo Fai Shing Francis -
£33 Peggy Lee 402,000
B Mak Yee Mei 1,180,000
(R=F——F (resigned on
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

Corporate shares pursuant to of total issued
WEESY WEESY share options Shares*
- - 55,435,384 - 55,544,384 42.87%
(PzE1)
(Note 1)
- - 55435384 1,040,000 56,475,384 43.59%
(GERY
(Note 1)
- - - 300,000 702,000 0.54%
- - - - 1,180,000 0.91%
(GE)
(Note 2)

* FoLNER_E_=F=ZA=1+—HAR
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*  This percentage has been compiled based on 129,552,780 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2023

Note 1:  These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited (“Neblett”)
and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ”). These companies are beneficially
owned by two separate trusts of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis are the discretionary objects. Both Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, by virtue of
their interests in the trusts as the discretionary objects and as the
Executive Chairman and Executive Director & Chief Executive
Officer of the Company respectively, were deemed interested in
the shares held by Neblett and CFJ.

Note 2:  These Shares were held by Ms Mak Yee Mei as at the date of her
resignation as Executive Director on 6 July 2022 and such Share
interests disclosure would be ceased after her resignation pursuant

to the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(b)

Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")

BERERREERNHEAE
Number of non-voting deferred shares

AR ks Q6lER
Personal Family Corporate
interests interests interests interests
EHB Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - 279,357 - 290,857
(BF5E3)
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company owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung solely.
All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the
section “Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March
2023, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age had any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executive’s interests under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) are also set out in the section “Share Option
Scheme” below.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share Option Scheme which was adopted on 7 September 2011
has been expired on 6 September 2021 (the “2011 Share Option
Scheme”). A new share option scheme of the Company was
approved by the Shareholders and adopted on 9 September 2021
(the "2021 Share Option Scheme”). Upon expiration of the 2011
Share Option Scheme, no further options will be granted
thereunder. However, the options which had been granted under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme prior to such expiration will
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules
of 2011 Share Option Scheme. Summary details of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and 2021 Share Option Scheme as at 31 March
2023 are set out below:

(A) 2011 Share Option Scheme

(a)

(@

The purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s businesses; to provide
incentives or rewards to any employee, Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director) or officer of any member of
the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote
the long term financial success of the Company by
aligning the interests of option holders to Shareholders.

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, Directors were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite any of the 2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
which shall not be less than whichever is the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

As at 31 March 2023, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme is 1,343,528 shares which represented
approximately 1.04% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(A) 2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall not in any twelve
months period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of
the Company'’s shares in issue.

The period during which an option may be exercised
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its sole discretion and
stated in the letter setting out the offer of the grant of
the option and might be varied by the Board in
accordance with the 2011 Share Option Scheme, but
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board may, in its
discretion, determine the minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme was 10
years commenced on 7 September 2011 and expired
on 6 September 2021.

(B) 2021 Share Option Scheme

(a)

(b)

The purpose of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s businesses; to provide
incentives or rewards to any employee, Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director) or officer of any member of
the Group (the “2021 Option Scheme Eligible Person”)
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
Shareholders.

Under the 2021 Share Option Scheme, Directors were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite any of the 2021
Option Scheme Eligible Person to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price which
shall not be less than whichever is the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(B) 2021 Share Option Scheme (continued)

()

(e)

(f)

(9)

As at 31 March 2023, the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
2021 Share Option Scheme is 12,955,278 shares being
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
9 September 2021.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the 2021 Share Option Scheme shall not in any twelve
months period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of
the Company’s shares in issue.

The period during which the option may be exercised
under the 2021 Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its sole discretion and
stated in the letter setting out the offer of the grant of
the option and might be varied by the Board in
accordance with the 2021 Share Option Scheme, but
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board may, in its
discretion, determine the minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The life of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is 10 years
commencing on 9 September 2021 and expiring on 8
September 2031.

The number of options available for grant under the scheme
mandate pursuant to 2021 Share Option Scheme at the beginning
and the end of the year ended 31 March 2023 is 12,955,278.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no option had been
granted by the Company under 2021 Share Option Scheme since
it has been adopted. The Directors and employees of the Group
had the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of
the Company (market value per share as at 31 March 2023 was
HK$11.78 (2022: HK$15.20)) granted for HK$1 consideration
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the total grant date fair value of unexercised
vested options and unvested options, measured in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q)(ii) to the financial
statements, amounted to HK$4,760,000 (2022: HK$7,975,000)
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The options are unlisted.
Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of HK$1 each of the Company. Assuming

that all the options outstanding as at 31

March 2023 are

exercised, the Company will receive proceeds of HK$51,021,000
(2022: HK$89,091,000).

Number of Numberof Numberof Number of

options

outstanding

Exercisable asat 1 April
period 2022

Date of
granted

—ERF
mA—A
EE-_F
=A=+-H
GE2

1 April 2016
031 March 2022
(Note 1)

b Sk 3
mA—H
FIECAF
=A=t+-H
GEZY

1 April 2021

031 March 2027
(Note 4)

—E_fF
NA+HE mA—H
(©10August ~ E-FE-LF
2020 ZA=t+-H
(Hi5£4)

1 April 2021

031 March 2027
(Note 4)

BER(ZF)
Lo Fai Shing Francis
(Director)

@ =F—1F
mA=+E
(a) 20 April 2015

40,000

b =T-FF
+AAH
(b)6 July 2020

40,000

O-T-TH 1,000,000

options
granted

during
the year

options
lapsed
during
the year

options
cancelled
during
the year

- (40,000 -

Weighted average

Closing price price of closing

Number of Number of per share price per share

options options immediately immediately

exercised  outstanding  Exercise  before date before date

during asat31 March price of grant of exercise

the year 2023 pershare  of options of options
HK$ HK$

- - 2070 20.80 -

- 40,000  17.90 17.84 -

- 1,000,000  17.08 17.12 -
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Date of
granted

@=Z—1%
MA=1H
(a) 20 April 2015

(b)) =F—hEF
+A=H
(b) 2 October
2015

[(Omt=Smie23
NA+H

(c) 10 August
2020

@=F—1%
MA=+H
(a) 20 April 2015

b =E=%F
NA+H

(b) 10 August
2020

TR

Exercisable
period

ZE-RE
MA—A
F-F-C-F
=RA=+-H
GED)

1 April 2016
031 March 2022
(Note 1)

—ERE
+A-8
EBCCF
hA=+AH
(M3E2)

1 October 2016
to 30 September
2022

(Note 2)

ol S 3
WA—A
i o
=A=1+—-AH
GEZY

1 April 2021
1031 March 2027
(Note 4)

—ERF
WA—A
FEOCF
=A=1+—-AH
GES

1 April 2016
1031 March 2022
(Note 1)

—E-F
WA—A
F_B_4F
=A=+-H
GETY

1 April 2021

031 March 2027
(Note 4)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Number of - Number of

options
outstanding
asat 1 April
2022

60,000

33,000

300,000

220,000

300,000

options
granted

during
the year

Numberof  Number of
options options
lapsed  cancelled
during during
theyear  theyear

(60,000) -

(33,000 -

(220,000 -

(300,000) -

Number of
options
exercised
during

the year

Number of
options
outstanding
asat 31 March
2023

300,000

Exercise
price
per share
S

20.70

22.20

17.08

20.70

17.08

I

- \/\/e\ghtedVaQerage

Closing price
per share
immediately
before date
of grant

of options
i

rgm

HKS

20.80

21.90

17.12

20.80

17.12

price of closing
price per share
immediately
before date
of exercise

of options

HK$
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Date of
granted

B8 —T-hfF
Employees mMA=1+A
20 April 2015

B8 —E-N\E
Employee +=A+NR
18 December

2018

B8 bk Sk 2
Employees +tARE
6 July 2020

B8 —ZCEF
Employees NA+AH
10 August 2020

B8 —Z-Ef
Employee +ZRA=+H
30 December

2020

Exercisable
period

ZERE
MA—A
EE-_F
=RA=+-H
GED)

1 April 2016
031 March 2022
(Note 1)

“E-NF
+A—-H
Z-2-nF
NA=+H
(MizE3)

1 October 2019
to 30 September
2025

(Note 3)

—E--F
WA—A
EoECARF

1 April 2021
031 March 2027
(Note 4)

b Sk 3
WA—A
ECECARF

1 April 2021
031 March 2027
(Note 4)

b Sk 3
+=ZA—-H
EIT4E
t-A=+R
GES)

1 December 2021
t0 30 November
2027

(Note 5)

Number of Numberof Numberof Number of

options
outstanding
asat 1 April
2022

1,106,500

30,000

710,000

700,000

300,000

options
granted

during
the year

options options
lapsed  cancelled
during during
theyear  theyear

- (1,106,500 -

(150,000) -

Number of Number of
options options
exercised  outstanding
during asat 31 March
the year 2023

- 30,000

- 560,000

- 700,000

- 300,000

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Exercise
price

per share
S
B

HKs

20.70

26.42

17.90

17.08

17.76

Closing price
per share
immediately
before date
of grant

of options
Sl

em

HK$

20.80

26.35

17.84

17.12

17.70

Weighted average
price of closing
price per share

immediately
before date
of exercise
of options

HKS
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 April 2016,
15% on 1 April 2017, 20% on 1 April 2018, 25% on 1 April 2019 and
the remaining 30% on 1 April 2020;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 October
2016, 15% on 1 October 2017, 20% on 1 October 2018, 25% on 1
October 2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2020;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 October
2019, 15% on 1 October 2020, 20% on 1 October 2021, 25% on 1
October 2022 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2023;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 April 2021,
15% on 1 April 2022, 20% on 1 April 2023, 25% on 1 April 2024 and
the remaining 30% on 1 April 2025; and

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 December
2021, 15% on 1 December 2022, 20% on 1 December 2023, 25% on 1
December 2024 and the remaining 30% on 1 December 2025.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
1(g)(ii) and note 19 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'’S AND OTHER
PERSON'S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BER
BERRHE
BB

Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total
indirectly held issued shares*

(i) Neblett (FffzE1) (i) Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 37.65%

(i) CFJ (i) CFJ

6,660,000 5.14%

(ili) Winning Spirit International Corp. (iii) Winning Spirit International Corp.

(fwsic ) (fzE1)

(“WSIC™) (Note 1) 48,775,384 37.65%

(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited

(THITLD) (Bif5E2)

("HITL™) (Note 2) 55,438,384 42.79%

* O BANLNERZZE=F=-A=+—HARRBEEH
1TRE15 129,552,780 st &

MRE1 . EHESIER — L HNeblett HiEF G 2%
19 © WSIC % /5 Neblett 5] 100% 4 &5 HUIHAR
BB Neblett FTEZEIZARG R - &

a2 . BRHTLEAREMELZZFEAMES 3,000
B& (0 o b %5 2539 B [R] — it f3 Neblett &
CREEHAFZBG, - HITLTY & W E A 28 5
B (R REVEERER) REBRL
E(ARBERHR) NETIXTEA  BE
WSIC R CRIEI100% % - iR AR &
MERARFTEZEFERDHEL

ERFARESEH /TR

BERFHEN R-B-=F=A=+—
B A D IR E I 336 BHRE T A
FBEMAE - LmBERAR ARG KB
R 15 ) EL MO BRSSO o

*  This percentage has been compiled based on 129,552,780 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2023

Note 1:  These interests represented the same block of shares directly held by
Neblett. WSIC owned 100% interest in Neblett and was therefore
deemed interested in the shares directly held by Neblett; and

Note 2:  Except for 3,000 shares held by HITL as trustee for other trusts, these
interests represented the same block of shares directly held by Neblett
and CFJ. HITL, in its capacity as a trustee of two separate trusts of which
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (as founder and discretionary object) and Mr Lo
Fai Shing Francis (as discretionary object), owned 100% interest in WSIC
and CFJ and was therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held
by these companies.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the

register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2023.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The particulars of the following connected transactions of the
Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")

On 26 February 2021, FFFL (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Hibony, as landlord, to renew the
lease for a term of three years from 1 March 2021 to 29
February 2024 (both days inclusive) with an option to renew
for further three years to operate a fast food restaurant.
Hibony is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive
Chairman and substantial Shareholder). Thus, the said
tenancy agreement with Hibony constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the said tenancy agreement with Hibony are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 26
February 2021.

As at 31 March 2023, the value of the right-of-use asset to
be recognised by the Group under the tenancy agreement
with Hibony is approximately HK$7,280,000 (2022:
HK$9,139,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Tenancy agreement with New Champion
International Limited (“New Champion”)

On 8 April 2021, FFFL (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with New Champion, as landlord, to renew the
lease for a term of three years from 10 April 2021 to 9 April
2024 (both days inclusive) with an option to renew for
further three years to operate a fast food restaurant. New
Champion is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of being an associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive
Chairman and substantial Shareholder) and Mr Lo Fai Shing
Francis (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company), the said tenancy agreement with New Champion
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Details of the tenancy agreement with New Champion are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8 April
2021.

At 31 March 2023, the value of the right-of-use asset to be
recognised by the Group under the tenancy agreement with
New Champion is approximately HK$8,550,000 (2022:
HK$10,675,000).

As these transactions contemplated under the tenancy agreements
with Hibony and New Champion were related and to be
completed within 12-month period, these transactions shall be
aggregated and treated as if they were one transaction under Rule
14A.81 of the Listing Rules which were subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but were exempt from the
circular and the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions and material related party
transactions are set out in “Connected Transactions” on pages 42
and 43 and in note 27 to the financial statements respectively.

Save for the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the Group's business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, none of the Directors is
considered to have interests in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the “Share Option Scheme” as set out in this annual
report, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2023 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which is
in force throughout the year and up to the date of this annual
report to provide appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the “Share Option Scheme” as set out in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in
the Company issuing shares, or that required the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company did not
issue any debenture.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

BANK LOAN

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had no bank
loan (2022: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 179 of the
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 180 of the annual report.
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By order of the Board

EHE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
BITEE

Executive Chairman

&8 —E-=F,A=1+H
Hong Kong, 30 June 2023

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2023,
save and except that the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company are not subject to retirement by
rotation, details of which and the reasons for the deviation are
stated below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March
2023 and up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Peggy Lee

Mak Yee Mei (resigned on 6 July 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Peter Wan Kam To

Yip Cheuk Tak

Ng Chi Keung (passed away on 8 March 2023)

Biographical details of all directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
are set out on pages 24 to 27 of this annual report. A list
containing the names of the Directors with their roles and
functions has been published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) is the father of Mr
Lo Fai Shing Francis. Other than the family relationship disclosed
above, there is no relationship among Directors of the Board and
in particular, between the Executive Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Attendance of Board Meetings and AGM

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2023. The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings and the annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM") are set out below:

HERE HEre,/

EFg R B £F
RRE RERE
Number of AGM
Board meetings attended/
attended/held held
HITES Executive Directors
EFE (BITEE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4 11
VR A (T AEE) Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 11
25 Peggy Lee 4/4 11
B Mak Yee Mei
(R-FE-——4F+ HNHAET) (resigned on 6 July 2022) 1/4 0/1
BAFYITES INEDs
PRERF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4 171
213 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4 1”1
FERH Peter Wan Kam To 4/4 171
Y R Yip Cheuk Tak 4/4 171
RER Ng Chi Keung
(R-ZFT=-=F=H//\ &) (passed away on 8 March 2023) 4/4 11
EESNEHE The Board and Management

EFERRBANAEBNBEEE  AREE
RERARBNEML  WHEBSIBREEAR
AER  ARBRRERNRAKYHNEL - £
BEE  HERBMELTEARRRERMN G
HURTE - ERRMBLEE RN ERER A
RIEME - Bt REEMTALEEATAZ
REABERE -

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors and thus, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
The Board and Management (continued)

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board is supported by three board committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. Each board committee has been constituted
with terms of reference setting out their composition, authorities
and duties approved by the Board and its recommendation or
decision on the matters within its terms of reference. Summary of
each committee’s works is disclosed in the subsequent sections of
this report.

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Where decisions to be taken by the Board require
specialised knowledge or expert opinion, Directors may choose to
take independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses, upon making request to the Board.

When director has a conflict of interest in a transaction or
proposed transaction with the Company, the matter shall be dealt
with by physical board meeting. Each Director is required to
promptly disclose any actual, potential and perceived conflict of
interest, in relation to a transaction or proposed transaction with
the Company as soon as practicable after the relevant facts have
come to his/her knowledge. Any Director facing a conflict of
interest will recuse himself/herself from the discussions and
abstain from participating in any Board decisions and voting on
resolutions regarding the matter.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
The Board and Management (continued)

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises three Executive Directors (four Executive Directors
before 6 July 2022) and the senior management of the Company.
Directors may request for explanations, briefings by or discussions
with senior management on any aspect of the Company’s
operations or business. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
above-mentioned officers.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations on all Board appointments and re-appointment.
Details of the formal and transparent process in the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors are set out in the section
“Nomination Policy” below.

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) to appoint any person recommended by the
Nomination Committee as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first AGM after
their appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii)
at each AGM, one-third of the Directors (other than any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) for the time
being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office provided that each Director (other than any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) including those
appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all INEDs are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the
Shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available at the website of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. There is no INED holding more
than seven listed company directorships.

The representation of INEDs is more than one third of the Board.
The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any
relationship or circumstance which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgement of the INEDs. All the INEDs
are considered to be independent.

Re-election of INEDs (including those who have served the
Company for more than nine years) shall be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders at the AGM. The
documentation to Shareholders accompanying the proposal of re-
election of INED who has served more than nine years would state
why the Board believes that such INED is still independent and
should be re-elected, the process of the Board in arriving at such
determination.

Directors’ Training and Induction to New Director

Upon appointment to the Board, Director is provided induction
training, such as provision of training material (including relevant
guidelines, governance policies and financial reports), to ensure
he/she has a thorough understanding of the Group as well as his/
her role and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by reading materials or by attending training courses/
seminars (as summarised as below) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and skills of a director
of a listed corporation.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Induction to New Director
(continued)

MEER &/
sk E i
RIE e
Reading
Materials

and/or
Attending
Training
Courses/
Seminars

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) v
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) v
Peggy Lee 4
INEDs

Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Peter Wan Kam To
Yip Cheuk Tak

DN NN

ARWEETHABFRE LTRA - 2XEE
FRAMEMEEFENSRHZHLERE
A YHEEBREREENEERERMRN
HRNGEER -

The Company Secretary provides regular updates on the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with reading materials relating to the latest development of
regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Lo Fai Shing Francis respectively.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring that (i) the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed in a timely manner; (i) the Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board meetings and (iii) the Directors receive
accurate, clear, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business. Their roles are clearly
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years;
however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws. The Board considers that the exemption of both the
Chairman and the Managing Director (the Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company from such retirement by rotation provisions
would provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
efficient use of resources, effective planning, formulation and
implementation of long-term strategies and business plans. The
Board believes that it would be in the best interest of the
Company for such Directors to continue to be exempted from
retirement by rotation provisions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination
Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and Mr
Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. Following the pass away of Mr Ng
Chi Keung, the Board resolved to appoint Mr Yip Cheuk Tak as a
member of the Nomination Committee and Dr Peter Lau Kwok
Kuen ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee and
all these took place with effect from 14 April 2023. The written
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with
the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessment the
independence of INEDs, identifies and recommends to the Board
suitable candidate(s) to stand for election by Shareholders at
AGM, or when necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.

APEEBEAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

53



54

EEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

REB|ERE (&)

% AL BE
BEARFESTZTBRE(ZTHE]D
ERESEKNEUENAKRE  T2Rx0E
EZitEEg @ WEETREEE X
{EFHEE S BELER - MH - FiRkEAM
B

REZESDERRDERTIHESTENE
FEIREAN  WERABEENBERT  BIHE
AREFEAMNESSRIEZR - RIEBANEZE
BEENRARBINRERELEEEZ T
R ©

EFEEAR  ZTLBRBRERUARKEEE
BROER REFEEELXEEREEE
ZREMEENRRNTER -EESREFRT
ZIUHRERARESERRIE -

BEEeUEHENERES  DIINEBER -
AR Mﬁ EZit hgstick  BBNE
SOk EMAMELRERE AAEENE
F&%Eﬁ&ﬁﬁ HE-_Z-_=F=ZA=
+—HALtLFEEAREAHL  tEZESEFPE
—HATHEEE Bt aTEEERHOL
B4 5 14.3% ° NEE B TR L BIFFIEE R
2022/2023FR3% - L@ RERREI ZHR
TETEER] — & - AR R ERIIE R
EEEZEEmOERZ Tt -

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Policy for Board Diversity

Under the Policy for Board Diversity of the Company (the “Diversity
Policy”), appointment of Board members will be made on merit
with due regard of benefits of diversity on the Board, such as
having differences in the skills, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, gender, age and other
qualities of directors.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated authority to
identify and assess potential candidates for appointment to the
Board, and if thought fit, to nominate and make recommendations
to the Board in respect of new appointments and re-
appointments. Selection of candidates will be based on the
Company’s Nomination Policy taking into account the Diversity
Policy.

The Board believes that the Diversity Policy will promote effective
decision-making and better governance and allow the Board to
consider a wider range of options and solutions to corporate
issues. The Board shall review the Diversity Policy annually to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board has a balanced mix of experiences, such as business
development, brand improvement, finance, audit and accounting
experiences and each Director has sound knowledge and expertise
contributing to the performance and development of the Group.
During the year ended 31 March 2023 and as at the date of this
report, there is one female Director out of seven Directors and
thus, the female representation was approximately 14.3% of the
Board. Details of the gender ratio of the workforce of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Championing a Happy Team”
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022/2023.
The Company will continue to take steps to promote gender
diversity at all levels of the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedure when considering the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Company's
business.

The selection criteria including but not limited to the following:

(a

Age, gender, skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and other qualities of the candidate;

Effect of such appointment on the Board's composition and
diversity;

Potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity;

Needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or
experience;

Commitment to devote adequate time to discharge his or
her duties as a member of the Board;

Any potential or actual conflict of interests that may arise if
the candidate is selected;

For appointment of the INED, the number of years the
candidate has served and the factors as set out in the Listing

Rules for determining the independence; and

Other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination
Committee on a case-by-case basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Under the Nomination Policy, nomination procedure is
summarized as below:

(a)

(b)

For appointment of new Director(s) by the Board, the
Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to identify
suitable candidates (or may seek assistance from external
consultancy agencies, if necessary) and evaluate potential
candidates based on the selection criteria set out above
through a physical meeting (unless it is impractical that the
physical meeting be held) to rank the candidates by order of
preference based on the selection criteria and determine
whether the candidate is qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee shall provide all relevant information
of the potential candidate (may including the terms and
conditions of the appointment) and make recommendation
to the Board for consideration and the Board, if considered
appropriate, shall approve the appointment of the proposed
candidate as new Director(s).

For re-appointment of Director(s) in a general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee is delegated by the
Board to review the overall contribution made by the retiring
Director(s) and take into account the selection criteria set out
above before making recommendation to the Board for re-
appointment. Also, the Nomination Committee shall conduct
such review through a physical meeting (unless it is
impractical that a physical meeting be held). Based on the
review made by the Nomination Committee, the Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders on retiring
Director(s) standing for re-election at the AGM and provide
the biographical information of the retiring Director(s) in
accordance with the Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders
to make an informed decision on the re-election of such
Director(s) at the AGM.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)

() For any candidate (other than a Retiring Director(s))
nominated by the Board or Shareholders to stand for
election as a Director in a general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal of nomination and the biographical information of
the candidate(s), evaluate his/her/their suitability based on
the same criteria set out above. The Board, under advice of
the Nomination Committee, may or may not make
recommendation to Shareholders on their voting to the
proposed election in the relevant announcement and/or
circular to Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs; to make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Directors pursuant to the Nomination Policy and to review the
revised Diversity Policy for submission to the Board approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the attendance record of
each member is as follows:

HExRe/

eV

Number of meetings
attended/held

Executive Director

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 1”71
INEDs

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1M1
Peter Wan Kam To 11
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Dr
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and Mr Ng Chi Keung (passed away on 8
March 2023). Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Following the pass away of Mr Ng Chi
Keung, the Board resolved to appoint Mr Yip Cheuk Tak as a
member of the Remuneration Committee for replacement of Mr
Ng Chi Keung with effect from 14 April 2023. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in line with the
CG Code and are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters and making
recommendations on the same to the Board for approval.
Remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to their
duties and responsibilities, experience, time commitment and
prevailing market practice.

Remuneration payable to Directors and individuals with highest
emoluments are set out on pages 125 to 128 of the annual
report. Furthermore, no share option has been granted to INEDs
since their appointment.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no matter
relating to the share option schemes adopted by the Company
that the Remuneration Committee was required to review and/or
approve pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held to assess performance of executive
directors and have an annual review of the remuneration of
Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE, &HIRE
Number of meetings

attended/held
INEDs
Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 11
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11
Ng Chi Keung
(passed away on 8 March 2023) 0/1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, Mr Peter Wan Kam To, Mr Joseph Chan
Kai Nin and Mr Ng Chi Keung (passed away on 8 March 2023).
Mr Peter Wan Kam To is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
Following the pass away of Mr Ng Chi Keung, the Board resolved
to appoint Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen as a member of the Audit
Committee for replacement of Mr Ng Chi Keung with effect from
14 April 2023. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are in line with the CG Code and are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Following the pass away of Mr Ng Chi Keung, the number of
members of the Audit Committee was below the minimum
number as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules as
disclosed in the announcement dated 9 March 2023. Yet, after
the appointment of Dr Lau Kwok Kuen for replacement, the Audit
Committee comprised three members and fulfilled the
requirement under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor
or external auditor before submission to the Board for approval. It
is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature of the
external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year with the Company’s
external auditor.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management'’s
responses; to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the attendance record of
each member is as follows:

HERE&H IR

Number of meetings

BYFHTES

FERHE (FE)

PR EK 4

REE
(R-—ZF-=4F=H\HE)

attended/held
INEDs
Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 2/2
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 2/2
Ng ChiKeung
(passed away on 8 March 2023) 2/2
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Ms Leung Wai Chi has
been appointed as the Company Secretary from 6 July 2022 up to
15 September 2022. Mr Chan Kang Tung has been appointed as
the Company Secretary since 15 September 2022. As the
Company Secretary, both Ms Leung and Mr Chan support the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
the Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. Further, each of them undertook not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors confirmed their compliance with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2023.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the Group
may be exposed to, the Board is responsible for establishing and
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted.

With delegation from the Board, the Audit Committee has already
reviewed its risk management framework and processes and has
implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise that
aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular, the
Group has developed, approved and implemented a risk
management system, which is supported by its approved risk
management policy. Moreover, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.
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REEBRRABEFEE &) OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

R ERRE Risk Governance Structure

AEEMREREEZREAEBITEAST - The Group’s governance structure for its risk management system

EHHEBERABACBRET - is shown in the diagram below. Each party has well defined roles

and responsibilities.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)

The major roles and responsibilities of each party are as follows:

Board

Is ultimately responsible for the risk management and
internal controls of the Group;

Evaluates and provide direction to the Group on the nature
and extent of the risks that shall be taken in achieving its
objectives (i.e. setting the risk appetite); and

Ensures the review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems is conducted at
least annually.

Audit Committee

Reviews the Group’s risk management framework and
internal controls with the Risk Management Working Group
at least annually, on behalf of the Board;

Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment during the
Audit Committee meeting, including the nature and extent
of significant risks and the Group's ability to respond to
changes in these risks and in its business and the external
environment;

Considers the results of any investigation into the Group's
risk management framework and internal controls, as
delegated by the Board or that it performs on its own
initiative, and the management'’s responses to the findings
of such investigations; and

Performs an annual review of the Internal Audit Department
including the adequacy of its budget and resources, the
qualifications and experience of its management and staff,
and the quality of its training program.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)
Risk Management Working Group

e Assists the Board and Audit Committee in overseeing the
risk management framework;

° Provides recommendations to the Board and Audit
Committee relating to the design or modification of the risk
management framework; and

° Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment and
submits these to the Audit Committee for its review.

Internal Audit Department

e  Validates the effectiveness of risk controls through internal
audit and identifies improvement opportunities as
appropriate.

o Manages and investigates misconduct and fraud cases, and
reviews the effectiveness of remedial actions.

e Acts as independent assessor of the risk management system
by performing assessments of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system; and
reports to the Audit Committee on the results of its
independent assessments.

Department Heads

e Act as risk owners and manage risks during their day-to-day
operations;

o Identify and assess risks associated with business activities
within their own departments; and

o Implement risk mitigation plans to remedy the identified
risks.

Risk Assessment Methodology

The Group's methodology for its risk assessment comprises of six
core phases, namely risk identification, risk appetite formulation,
risk assessment and measurement, formulation or update of key
risk register, risk monitoring and reporting, and disclosures. These
processes are performed at least once a year to address changes
in the Group's business environment.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2023, covering risk
categories such as strategy, operations, financial, external forces,
compliance and governance, ESG risk.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, also conducted an
annual review of the Internal Audit Department, and accounting
and financial reporting functions, including the adequacy of their
budget and resources, the qualifications and experience of
management and staff, and the quality of its training program, in
order to ensure that they are able to provide sufficient coverage of
the Group’s key risk issues.

Our Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while the management is responsible to design and
implement an internal control system to manage risks. The Board
is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems currently put in place for the Group.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Communications of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Group and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Group to make appropriate
decisions and responses to mitigate or address any risk events,
relevant information on the incident needs to be communicated
by and to the right functions and individuals, completely and
accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, written policy has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group.

Management provides the Board and the committees with
adequate information to enable them to make an informed
assessment of the financial information put before the Board for
approval. Further, each director has separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management for enquiries and
additional information.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that
there are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
External Auditor

A statement by the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out on pages 70 to 77 in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the external auditor of the Company were as follows:

—E-—F —=E==-_=

2023 2022

BETT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIEEEMB Review fee for interim results 362 560

PFEEFEZE Audit fee for final results 3,191 3,293
BIEREMREE R REHIEBZRG Non-audit services which covered

provision of tax compliance services 207 424

#aze Total 3,760 4,277
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The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly. These meetings provide
opportunities for the Board to engage with the Shareholders for
soliciting their feedback. Further, the external auditor shall attend
Shareholders’ meetings to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, all Directors attended the AGM held on 8
September 2022.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
(continued)

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and the Bye-laws, Shareholders may convene special general
meetings of the Company and put forward proposals at general
meetings. Procedures on how Shareholders can convene a special
general meeting, put forward proposals at the Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director are also
available at the Company’s website for Shareholders’ information.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically. Shareholders may also at any time send
their enquiries and concerns in writing to the Company through
channel set out in the "“IR Contact” at the section of Investor
Relations at the Company'’s website.

Various channels of communication with Shareholders mentioned
above are under the framework of the Company’s Shareholders
Communication Policy adopted in April 2022 and the Board shall
review this policy annually to ensure its effectiveness.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which sets out the criteria to be adopted when
considering declaration and payment of dividend with aims to
provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.

The Board may consider declaring and paying to the Shareholders
by taking into account of the following factors, among others, (i)
financial performance; (ii) retained earnings and distributable
reserve; (iii) cash flow; (iv) debt to equity ratio; (v) working capital
requirements; (vi) capital expenditure requirements; (vii)
investment requirements; (viii) future prospects and expansion
plans; (ix) general business conditions and strategies; (x) general
economic conditions and (xi) other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

Such declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
subject to all applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws.

The Board shall review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
shall update, amend or modify it whenever necessary.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 8 September 2022, a special resolution was passed to adopt
the new Bye-laws of the Company for the purposes of, amongst
others, reflecting and aligning with changes to the requirements
under the amended Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules with effect
from 1 January 2022, modernising and providing flexibility to the
Company in relation to the conduct of general meetings and
bringing the Bye-laws in line with the amendments made to the
Listing Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda.

Current version of the Company’s constitutional documents is

available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group"”) set out on pages 78 to 178, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on this matter.
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Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
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Refer to note 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 100 to
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BRENER
The key audit matter

RANEST N AEEZEE
How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Local economic conditions and the level of
competition from other similar restaurants impact the
performance of the Group's fast food restaurants.
Therefore there is a risk that the values of right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment (which
generally comprises leasehold improvements,
equipment, air conditioning systems and cutlery and
utensils), in certain restaurants may not be
recoverable in full through the future cash flows to
be generated from the operations of those
restaurants or from disposal of the related right-of-
use assets and other property, plant and equipment.

Management reviews the performance of individual
restaurants at the end of each reporting period to
identify if any restaurant displays negative
performance indicators (“indicators”) which could
indicate impairment.
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Our audit procedures to assess the potential
impairment of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment included the following:

e evaluating management’s identification of
impairment indicators and considering whether the
discounted cash flow forecasts on a restaurant-by-
restaurant basis supported the carrying value of the
relevant assets and assessing the methodology
adopted by management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards. We also considered whether the
management’s impairment assessments indicated
that a reversal of previously recognised impairment
was required;
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BRETBR
The key audit matter

KW ET M EEZEE
How the matter was addressed in our audit
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The key audit matter

KW ET M EEZEE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

Where indicators of impairment are identified, the
value in use of the right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment in these restaurants is
determined by management on a restaurant-by-
restaurant basis based on a discounted cash flow
analysis. Based on the assessment, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$40.6 million for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

The value in use model used to assess the risk of
impairment is based on a number of assumptions,
including estimations of future revenue, food cost
inflation, staff cost inflation and the discount rate
applied.

We identified assessing potential impairment of right-
of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter because of the
significance of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment to the consolidated financial
statements and because of the significant
management judgement and estimation required,
which can be subjective.

comparing the actual performance and results of
the selected restaurants for the current year with
the key assumptions and forecasts adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
for the prior year to assess whether there is any
indication of management bias and making
enquiries of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified and whether these
were considered in the current year's key
assumptions and forecasts;

critically evaluating the key assumptions and
forecasts adopted by management in its
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts
by referring to industry information, recent financial
performance of the fast food operations and
management’s budgets and plans for the
operations in 2023/2024 and beyond;

assessing the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
listed catering groups and taking into consideration
location and company specific risk premiums;

obtaining management'’s sensitivity analyses of the
discount rates, future revenue, food cost inflation
and staff cost inflation and considering the resulting
impact on the impairment charge for the year and
whether there is any indicator of management bias;
and

assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the impairment assessment of right-of-use assets
and other property, plant and equipment, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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HERBGIRHBAMHENEFTERAZ AR  The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

7B auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.
EERSMEBH KPMG

HE I D Certified Public Accountants
BAEPIR 8th Floor, Prince’s Building
BEITE 5% 10 Chater Road

ANFRENE Central, Hong Kong
—EZ=FA=1+H 30 June 2023
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mERGE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HE_Z_=F=A=1+—HLLEFE (ABEBIIR)
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PN Revenue 3(a) 3,024,152 2,881,942
$HE BN Cost of sales 5(b) (2,767,394) (2,659,381)
EF Gross profit 256,758 222,561
EMUAFME U2 FEE  Other revenue and other net gain 4 41,514 76,263
HEEA Selling expenses (37,379) (37,165)
1T E A Administrative expenses 5(b) (132,058) (130,449)

Hib % - #W2EMRHAE  Impairment losses on other property,

BB plant and equipment 10(d) (14,033) (18,960)
FREEENRERIE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 10(d), 11 (26,600) (30,312)
KEYELEESE Valuation losses on investment properties 10(a), 10(b) (4,840) (1,730)
BEGHER Profit from operations 83,362 80,208
A& KA Finance costs 5(a) (31,698) (32,404)
BREE AT R Profit before taxation 5 51,664 47,804
e Income tax 6(a) (6,784) (5,164)
RN TR A IR SR PR Profit for the year attributable to equity

REEHEF shareholders of the Company 44,880 42,640
BREF Earnings per share 9
HA Basic 34.641l cents  32.9711ll cents
s Diluted 34.641l cents  32.911l cents

FSSEF17TSHMM B ARG EIRKXM—EE  The notes on pages 85 to 178 form part of these financial
Do BNARRIESERRAKENFFHIIN  statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
Fi7E23(b) ° the Company are set out in note 23(b).
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GEESRAMEEKER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE-_Z_=—F=-A=+—HIFE (ABEIR)

for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N0 B R 5 IR R BB G AN 5 B E A

AEEHMREKE

HE A RE B 7R 3R R A -

BEHERMHE R F

Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 44,880 42,640

Other comprehensive income for the year:

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of financial

B AE S =5 statements of subsidiaries in Mainland China (4,106) 1,906
AAREERRELCAFERE Total comprehensive income for the year
W4 attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company 40,774 44,546

D

85EE 178 B MM EEAYMEHREAMN—3  The notes on pages 85 to 178 form part of these financial

statements.
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SEMBRRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-B-=€=A=+—RAUB%IIR)
at 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FREBEE Non-current assets
KEYE Investment properties 10(a) 23,260 28,100
Eab 2 - BB Other property, plant and equipment 10(a) 379,399 385,197
FEREEE Right-of-use assets 11 1,033,885 1,078,744
1,436,544 1,492,041
FEUFH E R Lease receivables = 609
EES Goodwill 12 1,001 1,001
B EeZRe Rental deposits paid 68,483 68,797
RIEFIEE &= Deferred tax assets 20(b) 4,070 5,336
1,510,098 1,567,784
RENEE Current assets
TE Inventories 13(a) 55,624 57,278
JFE LA B 5K R0 L Ath R LA R Trade and other receivables 14 90,033 144,664
AJ U [B] A B F TR Current tax recoverable 20(a) 32 10,440
RITFERKIREH Bank deposits and cash and
ReEEY cash equivalents 15 646,758 557,102
792,447 769,484
REBAE Current liabilities
A1 BR FUFD H 0 JE S 3R Trade and other payables 16 400,536 344,428
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 393,575 410,072
FERT AN EAFR I8 Current tax payable 20(a) 406 41
K Provisions 21 20,804 26,603
RERBESE A Long service payment obligation 22 1,903 1,178
817,224 782,322
REBEEEE Net current liabilities (24,777) (12,838)
EELABERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 1,485,321 1,554,946
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZTZZ=F=A=+—BUABEBITR)
at 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ERBERE Non-current liabilities
HEaf Lease liabilities 17 732,878 776,158
EEHIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 20(b) 76 1,086
Bl ZS Rental deposits received 14 1,769
R Provisions 21 47,450 41,477
RERB BT Long service payment obligation 22 24,274 20,220
804,692 840,710
BEEFE NET ASSETS 680,629 714,236
EARNRE Capital and reserves 23
N Share capital 129,553 129,553
HiE Reserves 551,076 584,683
R TOTAL EQUITY 680,629 714,236
ExeRN T _=FA=THZEILFA Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
B o June 2023.

=EWE EEA
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Lo Fai Shing Francis
HITEE 7T AAZ,
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

LEERITBEMMEBAMBMAMN —  The notes on pages 85 to 178 form part of these financial
#B e statements.
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GEREZHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_T_=F=A=+—BLLFE (AEEIITR)

for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share
capital
Tt
$'000

Wi
Note

AR RSN EG D
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

N
= ﬁﬁ

fe

Capital
premium

Tt

Land and
buildings
Exchange revaluation

(o 57
=&

X

Retained
profits
Tt

R-B=Z—F At 1 April 2021
B—H 129,533 54,832 7,693 3,837 527 581,414 777,836
Br-—8=—— Changes in equity for year
=A=+—-Hi ended 31 March 2022:
FENRZSE
ANF R A Profit for the year - - - - — 42,640 42,640
HEp2HEKE Other comprehensive income - - - 1,906 - - 1,906
RNEE2EEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 1,906 ~ 42,640 44,546
RIEHE AT E1%7T  Shares issued under share
B option scheme 20 356 (34) - - - 342
BITER Issue expense - (5) - - - - (5)
FFEEBHERMRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - - (77,731) (77,731)
AEEDSIREEE  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (32,388) (32,388)
RBERRIE Lapse of share options - - (800) - - 800 _
LARERS 45 E BN LARR (S Equity-settled share-based
RERNZ S transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) - - 1,636 - - . 1,636
R-B-ZF At 31 March 2022
=B=+-—-8 129,553 55,183 8,495 5,743 527 514,735 714,236
R-B-—F At 1 April 2022
mA—H 129,553 55,183 8,495 5,743 527 514,735 714,236
BE-—®E=-=f§ Changes in equity for year
=ZA=+—HLt ended 31 March 2023:
FENERRZSE
RNEE R F Profit for the year - - — - — 44880 44880
Efh 2wz Other comprehensive income = = - (4,106) - ~  (4106)
NEZ Mm% Total comprehensive income
for the year - = - (4106) — 44880 40,774
FEECHERNRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - - (51,821) (51,821)
RNEZEEIRMILE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (23,320) (23,320)
R EE AR A Lapse of share options = - (3,097) = = 3,097 =
DAESS B B DAPR (D Equity-settled share-based
RERHZ S transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) = - 760 - - _ 760
R-B==F At 31 March 2023
=A=+-—H 129,553 55,183 6,158 1,637 527 487,571 680,629
FESSEF17T8SEMMEB AP IS |MERAM —  The notes on pages 85 to 178 form part of these financial
#h e statements.
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GEHTRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HET-_=F=A=+—BLEFE (ABBITR)
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

$'000 $'000
BEEE Operating activities
B AT F Profit before taxation 51,664 47,804
HEIER Adjustments for:
Hih - e Depreciation for other property,
e plant and equipment 5(b), 10(a) 89,122 90,948
GCREEERE Depreciation for right-of-use assets 5(), 11 389,539 408,430
HWE - #e2MERE  Impairment losses on other property,
RREEE plant and equipment 10(d) 14,033 18,960
ERAESERFERE  Impairment losses on right-of-use assets  10(d), 11 26,600 30,312
BB R Finance costs 5(a) 31,698 32,404
HEHA Interest income 4 (14,757) (3,295)
BREHMYE  #8F  Netloss on disposal of other property,
REREIEEE plant and equipment 4 4,819 5,291
KEMEGESE Valuation losses on investment properties 10(b) 4,840 1,730
NEREENUREMD A Equity-settled share-based payment
EWH A expenses 5(b) 760 1,636
MEBIE = Gain on lease modifications 4 (7,238) (6,804)
EEELEEAKEER Operating profit before changes
in working capital 591,080 627,416

HESSEE ! Changes in working capital:
FEREL/Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 1,654 (11,270)
[BEREitkR s Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits paid

wd/(Ehn) 6,905 (129)
FEUCBR SR AN Ef fEURER  Decrease/(increase) in trade and other

W) receivables 48,925 (42,521)
FER BRI E M FENS 3R Increase/(decrease) in trade and other

20,/ CRd) payables 42,224 (12,375)
BRAEEEE R Decrease in rental deposits received (2) -
RERBESEMT Increase/(decrease) in long service payment

=0 G ) obligation 22 4,779 (675)
BEAEEKRAERE Provision for reinstatement

costs utilised 21 (2,275) (2,565)

RETHEENERS Cash generated from operations 693,290 557,881
BUF B Interest received 11,858 3,542
2iRE/ (BN EE Net Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid)

FUECZizhes= 4,245 (60)
RETBHEEN Net cash generated from

RE&FE operating activities 709,393 561,363
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-Z-=F=A=1—HILFE CABEIR)
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bzt
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REEE Investing activities
BAE MY  HERA  Payment for purchase of other property,
BUNEN plant and equipment (99,030) (76,483)
BEEMYE  #EF  Net proceeds from disposal of other
REFTERIEF5E property, plant and equipment 31 142
Hit &R EEDHME  Proceeds from maturity of other
IR financial assets = 16,779
B =8 A2 3 He (Increase)/decrease in bank deposits with
BRI (), 4 more than three months to maturity (60,000) 6,511
DB ETESME AL Capital element of lease rentals receipt 2,222 2,160
BUFAERSHNFEES Interest element of lease rentals receipt 46 108
REZTEHFMANELELE Net cash used in investing activities (156,731) (50,783)
WEEE Financing activities
ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂéﬁéﬁéﬁﬁﬁ Proceeds from shares issued under share
Friazh option scheme 23(c)i) = 342
?"ﬁﬂxfﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ’\] ZH  Expensesincurred in connection with
the issue of shares - (5)
ERRE Dividends paid 23(b) (75,141) (110,119)
ENEERELHEARLD Capital element of lease rentals paid 15(b) (413,868) (427,548)
ERNEEMRSHFERD Interest element of lease rentals paid 15(b) (31,698) (32,404)
BEEEFTAMNRESESE Net cash used in financing activities (520,707) (569,734)
ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%{“% Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
#m,/ (R F cash equivalents 31,955 (59,154)
REOA—HHEEA Cash and cash equivalents
REZEY at 1 April 557,102 615,632
IMNEERSBBNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (2,299) 624
R=ZA=+—HMNEEHM Cash and cash equivalents
ReEEY at 31 March 15 586,758 557,102
FSEEFEI17TSEANMEB A KRR — The notes on pages 85 to 178 form part of these financial
& o statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B3E5BRA - BAGLUEEIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EESHEE
(a) &R EH

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

AMBRRERRBRELSMAGHE
R PR E R E BT B REER)D
(ERBESMEERNERCEBR
BHREEN) (FEGHEMN) MR
B) BALRETRAUMEFEC(AT
fER ) ) 8O F5 T AR B o AN B S R R B
NEBEABAaRSAARDA ([BR
Frl) EZ LR R EHRA D) &yE
REBERE - ATRARBREHEB
RE (I ARE D) AT EEE
B ©

BEGMAGRN T ETHIIME
ERTRCEBT B RE L) - FLE
AEASRBEEMN ST HRRAEER
HAHEFRA - ERAKBE AR
£ B R 016 FE IS L ¥ 7T MRS AT B9
RS ERMAE S BENE
MEtBRRED BERAPBHRRA
iR - EEREREIRHEC

(b) BA 6 SR AR

BE_T-_=F=F=+—HItEE
BB HRRRERER o

R-_ZE-_=F=A=+—H' K&
B 8 B) & E 4R (B £792,447,0007C
(ZZ = — 4 :769,484,0007C ) © M
BB &4 {E A817,224,000T( =
T~ — £ :782,322,0007T) - A U -
ANEBE 5 R E & EIFE 24,777,000
T( = E = = € :12,838,0007T ) -
FEHRALSERARBEE T AK
393,575,000t EEBFE (=T ==
£ :410,072,0007T) °

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023 comprise the Group.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s total current assets were
$792,447,000 (2022: $769,484,000) and total current
liabilities were $817,224,000 (2022: $782,322,000). As a
result, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
$24,777,000 (2022: $12,838,000) mainly due to lease
liabilities of $393,575,000 (2022: $410,072,000)
recognised under current liabilities.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRBHAEEEDIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EFESBE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) ISR mBLEZE (7) (b)Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

BER_TE-_=Z=F=A=Z=+—87%F Despite the net current liabilities as at 31 March 2023, the
ErnBEeEEE BEAKSERZAE bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted to
MIBETERERBESNBESEED $646,758,000 (2022: $557,102,000) on the same day and
£646,758,000C( = T = = F: the Group reported a profit before taxation of $51,664,000
557,102,0007T ) MA KL EE - T = (2022: $47,804,000) and recorded net cash generated
=F=ZA=+—H1E5F®RAOBR T A from operating activities of $709,393,000 (2022:
& A £51,664,000C( = F = = F : $561,363,000) during the year ended 31 March 2023.
47,804,0007T) © BEBREEESE Furthermore, based on the cash flow projection prepared
£ /IR £ F % /709,393,000 (= F by management which covers a period of not less than
Z =4 :561,363,0007T) ° B - B twelve months from 31 March 2023, the directors are of
ERERHENBREE T _=F=H the opinion that anticipated cash flows generated from the
=+—HEMPRTZEREBFENER Group’s operations can strengthen the Group’s financial
EREEA  BEERR  AEEKEE position and enable the Group to have sufficient financial
EMEHRRERERE—TBEELRE resources to meet its financial obligations as and when they
BB AR - AR RSB AL ST 5 fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2023.
BITEBE-ZZ-_=F=A=+—HEX Accordingly, the Group's consolidated financial statements
RT_EANKMBEE - Bt - K& have been prepared on a going concern basis.
B e M BRRIEFECEEERR
BRTXAEMNETHESERIAN The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
REARM MR R ANELKANER financial statements is the historical cost basis except as
STEEE . otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below.
ERETERUNTE(EBMBREE The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
AR S iR R E R & R BER R HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
R UREE - BF WAFNEZH estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
B S ERERE A R 2 R H T - (EETAD policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
RER o 38 LA St AR R R 2 AR 15 A and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
AREBNEEEREERBRARAESE are based on historical experience and various other factors
BZEEMARELS  HERE that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
BT B PR FE A A KR H A iR 1S BN B the results of which form the basis of making the
150 & &= B B E A R EE R AT 2 judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
ETen &5 - ERA&R A RN fEE that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
B o results may differ from these estimates.
ERES I MENZEMET MAERH The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
R - MR HFNETRERE an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
X—HfH ExEFersziilng recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
R MRETHERMMAKRARBE A the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
728 BIZEVE & T #Y HA 8 A0 R 2R HA revision and future periods if the revision affects both
EIRERR © current and future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRIGAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FEFHBE @)
(b) A B3RV AR R E X ()

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b)Basis of preparation of the financial statements

FHEEBRERA(ERVBRS
ADEAELE AP BEHRREEATE
B HIET - AR E RO EEBETEE
AENHR/AT - HIIRHE2 -

SRTBERNERT
BEGTMAGRM THETRIEFTHN
(BAMBRERER)  EBLEETNAS
B AESHHREERER

~

s (BFABFERD)FIRIEF Y
X BETRE - (FRUEMEZ A
FriFs R ]

s (BEEBGRTERI)EI7RIERTE
B KBRENABEEE  BRE
#)-BTTE #9895 7 |

BEUEEITY R AEERERE2RE
MM EE MM BEARN T REE
BEAFE - AEEVERAEFNEES
IS AT B (A R A A R R S R -

(d) KB )
MBARRESANEEZHMELS-
EAEEA2HEEREBmAER
BEEFRHEKL KA ZH AT EEE
W BAEgHBEBRREEHEINES M
HEZFEOWE . AIRNSEZEHZE
BB ASBEEHE LiliES
BN EER(ASEMEMSMRES
H)) BEERER) o

(continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

e Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

e Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —
cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

8/



B S ¥R AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRBHAEEEDIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEERBR 2 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) B R T (&) (d) Subsidiaries (continued)
REBARMREREHRRERZE An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
El g e BEES M BHERP S consolidated financial statements from the date that
FTE - EBANEARMEESS  XHMIR control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
EmE UREBEATIZFEEDN group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
ERARBR G SERREETE unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
WARBDEHEE EBRBRFH AT eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
BoR S IR BB T EER IR statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
=R BIREBRREN A EEER transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
RO HERRERI D o gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.
EARRBTBEMRRAERA > RHE QA In the Company's statement of financial position, an
MR E IR AR S REEE (28K investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
= 10)(ii)) & 5IBR - losses (see note 1(j)iii)).

(e) & (e) Goodwill
B 245 () EB A (i) R BN EE - Goodwill represents the excess of
() FrEEAENARBERASEEMN (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration

ARBHBETRAESHARE transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
EEARA held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(i) WU HEF A R B EM B ERUE (i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
HEFt 8RR BEFHE - and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
EHARBROF  BHAOBENRE When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
BaPERAREWEN K - immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
AR ERKARE BT RERIBET Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
- rEEMHELENREBESOIRETE losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
BRI E B A HH i R = & A B & 3 allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
HeELELXBcELE AR generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
W B ESFEXRENR (2K 1)) synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
(iii)) ° impairment (see note 1(j)iii)).
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(BRIESEER - BRIGAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESHBE 5
(f) At EHMERRESRE

AEBERINERRREZINNER
M E F BN G RREIIAT -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries are set out
below.

HREBMESESRE  AKER
FGBE/HEREE AR R
RELERE - WEBRRIABEMER

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at

SRAIIETIER ©

BRESREUIIIRE

AEEBAENGERERERNTE

RIS -

fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.
Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into the following measurement category:

| MoERASHEKEEAEHAS — amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
%D%U%Ffr%iﬁ’ﬂé%’ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ% collection of contractual cash flows which represent

B BB LA S AR B - 1T solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
ﬁéiﬁ’qﬂéﬂ&)\ﬁé)ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ% income from the investment is calculated using the
EATEE (RN (t)(i/ii)) 3 effective interest method (see note 1(t)(iii)).

(g)amE (g) Investment properties
REMERERBRDASWAR K
RERBEMREL XRBEEERR (2
BABNEE 13)) Fr A B L ith Jo Sk AR EEY) o

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(i)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1¢0(ii).

BREMERAAEBELRK  REWE
AABENES IBEIRERE
MEMEENEMEEHERBER
BEPER - KENENHASBARRK
BR 5 1 (0)Gi) Pt 77 AR ©

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
Group could elect on a property-by-property basis to
classify and account for such interest as an investment
property. Any such property interest which had been
classified as an investment property was accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(i)), and the
same accounting policies were applied to that interest as
were applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments were accounted for as
described in note 1(i).

HERBREA - MRAEENEEHEE
FREMEREzBENBZMERIES
WAR RAEREE  BRNESS
NEBHEYXSERZRIGER/REY
£ WREARK - BIRAREMENE
MYEEROARTAEARERE
(2B FEMER 5 MAE
ERMEFRELRABRERE LA
MEMREMERR - HEMKHA
BRI BT EE1G)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRBGEEEZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESHBE 5 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) L2 - Wes MR E (h) Other property, plant and equipment

AR ¥ 2 - H 23 F0 R 48 TE B A B AN R, The following items of property, plant and equipment are

ERFAIMENREEE (2HME1() stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

(i) B ABR - impairment losses (see note 1())ii)):

- AEEWIEEAYMERTNFME - right-of-use assets arising from leases over freehold or
BAKAEEYESBEY IR leasehold properties where the Group is not the
HHRERELENTRELSE registered owner of the property interest;

- HEBMNREIEE 0 SIEEERKER — items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
REHEEENFEREEE (2 assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
BIEE1G) + & equipment (see note 1(i)); and

- HMERANREEB(TEEIX - other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
ZEARFEM(2HTX)) - utensils (see below).

BITERENHEMYE  BBINRERE The cost of self-constructed items of other property, plant

ENERBEYLHETHE  Eha and equipment includes the initial estimate, where relevant

R AR R ) G N R 18 HL P T b 2 of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and

HER o restoring the site on which they are located.

WENEEAMYE  HRIMRER Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an

BFIEAMNBERZAEREE TSR FHE item of other property, plant and equipment are

HIERRESHACENERET I determined as the difference between the net disposal

RREES R B B E 8 iR o proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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1 FREHBE @)
(h) E A #)2€ - 2R MRME (&)
Hi%k  HBRENREBFENTER
PAE #R0RFE A T AT AT A AR A0 85
HARBE(SAERGEFERED

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
other property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over

B))EtE - their estimated useful lives as follows:

- MHELHF 30-504F - Leasehold land and 30-50 years
BRE buildings situated thereon
BEY

- BEEE R/ i ERFH & - Other properties held for ~ The remaining term of
HAth % own use the tenancy leases

- FEERAMEE wHEEH - Ownership interests in The remaining term of
T BE R R leasehold land held for the tenancy leases

own use

- THEMmE e EATE & - Leasehold improvements  The remaining term of
WRIRE the tenancy leases

- BRI 8 R 10 & A - Air-conditioning plant The remaining term of

the tenancy leases

- BERMRFE HFF 10%-33% — Furniture and equipment  10%-33% per annum

- "E FFE15% - Motor vehicles 15% per annum

- BES HF25% — Computer systems 25% per annum

- Hft HF10% — Others 10% per annum

AEEesEEHEENT BHRM
BE(E) -

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,

are reviewed annually.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 EESHEE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) HEEE (i) Leased assets

92

AEBRABNABBHENETH
i MEZANEAR —BAEEX
ERE—HMEE - WAHNRN —RER
N RBREEN R —HA#5E
EEAEGIE AZe0E—AE
ExBe—HHEE - EEFPTEHEA
TEABBEEERNEN  BEE
ESERARNEEMEENET
EHRENED  MIEENEREREE

% -

(i) EREBA
RAEFE R - NEEERERE
BEMBERE HEHIRNHE
R1R2EANEHEE (BLAKEM
CEBRTEBEE) R ER
ETEAMEOEERBNEE N
FENEEARERARGHERS
M -

oif

FHEWERNL HEAGRKAE
EMAMENEENFBEREE
AEMNE(FEHERSMNERELE
BREE - RIGE AR R RO G E R
) FREOREETVRER -
IaTER R - HERBEREHKA
B WRABRANERAFENE
EA - TBURRIEH L KA &
HEMRETAABRER BHE
B RtEEZENSHHEAE
BEPIIK -

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

(i) As alessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less, for the Group are primarily retail stores. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRIGAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EBEHBE @)
() AEEE (@)
() fERFERA ()

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

EENMCAERERNEAEEE
B AR E - FAEEE/NK
ABREREBBENYBRESRE ML
FHESABAN ZAISNNEE
NREAREZENVIREEE
R -EHEABAT FAEEEN
KAEBEFDRBRIENEE
ERZENEESEMES A&
BERKRATREHRE - B AW
BWEENE c REEIREMET
EIRMFE1QMUA R EBEESRAE
FEEENIN  FREEERER
AR A 2T E TR EEEED
SEEFIEE (28R 21 () F1G)GiD) ©

INREHR L R B CEBRREE
NREZLEY  ELARERE
BREERGINENSEELE
B XEHRAKEEEAERTE
BITERBE  BHEIRLHERE

AEHEAE  MREEEBLT
ENEMERE  BHEREER
ENERESRFELHRREE  HE
AREREENEOSFECREST - A
#AERA T B AT AR

EHRAMBIRRAET  AEERE
ERHERRT —_EAREENE
MNRBENRERBEERIEER

BRRE D

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 1(h) and 1(j)iii)), except for right-of-use assets
that meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value in accordance with note 1(g).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 EESHEE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) HEEE (&) (i) Leased assets (continued)
(i) tEBBAA (ii) As a lessor

94

AEBEREBEAR  AEEER
HERKAEESRAHESRER
EERKZEHE - MREEFRFH
BEMAEMERNBARI D ER K&
BImEL FEBEAEA - AlLE
HESBARERE - TR %M

MESEHBEHRELD MIERE S
D RNEERBEREBIIHEHEER
HEE BEYNNEEIBESHE
MRS - KERENHESWAR
PEBEEE 1(t)(i) 7ERR ©

EAEETPREEAR  REX
HEELAMNEREEE  A5EH
BHESERREHENKEH
E-MRTHEBAKSEERME
AT ERBR RN EHEE
AIRAEERZERESBERKEE
HE -

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

1)i).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 1(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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1 FREBE @)
() EEBFEMEERE
(i) FEUWRARFRA ELALAELURR - LABRSE AL

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

AARNEREE - UREWHEE
RELNEEFE
AEEBRAATHEENESREES
1B

- DABERAGENEREE R

- RURHEER

BHEEBIRNFTE

B EEBREEEBROMEM
RfhETE - FREEBRAMA RN
RelR(AEERESHER
HA AR &R E EA R A B HUYE
MREREZHENER) HREE

GLER

WTRFEEKN  RHRASERE
EANTHRRFR

- BEEMERNSEEENNER
AR SRR EL i B R - A ) A
REHE—EAREOLUNER
TEEERNE

- BRHEEN: AR ERKHE
ERmrRE

EFEEMEEEREREENR
RHER 575 B bR (= AR R &
RAHOHIR -

EFERBEERER  A8EE
ERBAXMNEZRALBIME
ARHNAENMAXKEEBNER -
ZEEHRBRAEEM REGN
BRSO BERIF TR ©

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the following item:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
— lease receivables

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rate where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 FREEERE)
() FEBEMEERE (&)
(i) FEUWRBRFRA EALAELURR - LABRSE AL

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
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AAENERMEE - UREWRHEE
RELNEEEE (&)
BHEEBENTE (B)
EHEEBERROTEREEE

SHE
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PzERAREREEBREL
MWIRERBEFEMAMAE A
EREMENSHERNER -

AEEUAEREEFEHAES
EEERNSEERKEFIME
WHERNERER - ZFTRE
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R s BRI MBR B EREHE
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HRAERMERTA  AEER
REER12ZEARBEESEDN
SHERBRERS  RIFSHRIA
MERRER B 756 ERER CRE S
e ERERT - BEEHERR
HERBEFENBRHAEEBHED
SHAE -

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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1 FREBE @)
() EEBEMEEREE)
(i) FEUWRARFRA ELALAELURR - LABRSE AL

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

AARNEREE - UREWHEE
RELNEEEE (&)

1= AR EERZ 12 N
EFEENRERARSRTANE
ERRETBERME  ARERK
HEAFENSRE T RENRER SR
VA HER AR AR RETTLER -
AR AEER /MR
ATER BIBEETENEMF O
ERATAA 2R TEEARE
BHERER  ZAETERAS
BERE DI B3R A (RFFH)
FERTY: E(NEHREEAHR
BENLTR - AEEEERBHEAX
MBERALBZHME A BHNEE

FAXKEENEEMELEHR
% E AR BRI B M AT RE
B8 -

LER  EHEERRER B VR
wufﬁ/‘% #ﬁ%i“ﬂﬂﬁﬁ Hgf %Fﬁ.?l/\/{
TER

- EAHNENRBAREEERSH
EME

- SRITAEMIINEFKAERE AT
BB NEBR X TBHREE
=1t

- EBAERIEBRANEER
BBEEBABIL: &

- HEBSABRTHEHYAKRERD
MBENELEEATHEENK
il i EEIERRIEDN
ERRFERES -

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
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other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
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Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the amount carried in “trade and
other payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
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(continued)

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the
risk of default of the specified debtor since the issuance
of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless
the risk that the specified debtor will default has
increased significantly since the guarantee is issued, in
which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same
definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note 1(j)

(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

other property, plant and equipment;

— right-of-use assets (other than property carried at
revalued amounts);

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’'s
statement of financial position.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iv)Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see note 1(j)iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Inventories

0)

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1G)0).
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1 EESHEE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) & BB (m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(j)ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(o) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(])).

For a single contract with the customer, a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)).

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy in note 1(j)(i).
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1 FESHEER &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)EEREF (q) Employee benefits
() EHEESEFFNREMFTCRIRETE (i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
EOREREN defined contribution retirement plans
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Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

The contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are charged as an expense in the year as the
related services are provided by employees.

The Group’s net obligation under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in respect of long service
payments on cessation of employment under certain
circumstances is the estimated discounted amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated annually using the projected
unit credit method, taking into account accrued
benefits related to the Group’s Mandatory Provident
Fund (MPF) Scheme contributions that can be used to
offset pre-transition long service payments.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments
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The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company'’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Income tax
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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1 EEERBR 2 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) FRSHE (&) (r) Income tax (continued)
THERAEELEHEEEEAENE R The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
ZB2FAUTARBOBIINMER - AA] and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
ERBHTEESHROEE . fT¥E goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
et ERRNHNEENE BB recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
R (NBESHN 3D BRI accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
URIEERHBAR (NEBERER - a business combination), and temporary differences relating
RUBR A AN £ [ B] DA ) 82 (] /O BE R to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
i B 7 7] 8 R &9 # 2k T K Al B ¥ [0 Y of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
Tir=8 kBRI ENER AR R reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
RIRA[ eSS R E R E=R) o reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of

deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

EREMERBEWE () T8 & 5T R Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
UNARBEARR  BRIEZSWMER in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
TURETREEEA RS BN 1(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
EZEMEBRL DO ENEREE using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets
BB - MIEmB L EEE - Al at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
ERRELEHBEERE BIRBIUR property is depreciable and is held within a business model
HeEHEZSEERBRAMNBE X whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
2o EFBEEMIBERT  ERRELER economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
HeRREAEHAERESENTER rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
BEHRAAEEAR  BEBEDHITHNER deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
THRREE LERATHORRGTE - B manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
ERRIBEERE EYTHIREE - of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

REBeNSHEHRAEMRELHRIEE The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
ENEESE WEAREFEHIE the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
Al B ME1S B AR A FE B )i A1) DA HK 1 48 78 extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
MR BEANZR ZELHBEENERR profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
SHRFeHAK: BERNEREAA be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
ESRANER A EEREES that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
#o - be available.
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(BRIES BN - BRIGLUERTITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEEHBER 2 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) FT5%: (&) (r) Income tax (continued)
EHMEERIBEMREESHEE D Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
FSIR - W HA TR o 2R movements therein, are presented separately from each
BEEREGEARALNRNANEBGETE other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
TEEAEBHIEEEREE BIE against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
BE WEREUTHEEEDNER against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
T Al LA BIHE 5 = H RN IE B 1A has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
B against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- BHHBEEERESE: KAARZA — in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
EBEFERFHEEELE  JER Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
SHRZEENGEEZEE X basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- EEFEAERAG EeiEHR — in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they

EEMNBEHER—FHIEEEARATE relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

P —IEBRE ST AR authority on either:

- RE—EHERE: X - the same taxable entity; or

- TRAMEHRERE - 5 LB — different taxable entities, which, in each future
ETEBEBREEGN A ABEERLT period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
MEEBEZTEAEAABEREL liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
MIBEEMAKREHMA - recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
BREFHAETER EHEEEE and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
MEEZBMIBEE AR realise and settle simultaneously.

BRZEENGEEZAEB -

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 09
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(BRIESEER - TRBHAEEEDIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESHBE 5 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) EENHEAERE (s) Provisions and contingent liabilities
IMRANEBAREBEENEHAESE Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
FEREEER EmBEHeEHSH constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
KR R g ) B RSN - TE R LAYE R AT is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
SHLER  AEEFESTIRERE - W required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
REBRBEER BEBEAMEX be made. Where the time value of money is material,
HRIRERT IR ER - provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

RS A & E WK E RN B A B Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
MK - R EEH A BEEELA benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
EREE FeBEZEKERATE estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
B1& - BEIRINGEY A e 1 3R (K Bl R contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
Ghe IMBAREENRFARFEFT economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
ZRAREHROELESEETEER existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
T NeEELAsEasE B8R occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
T H B BE M AR K RIBR S © as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

IMEE B —IBEEMENITDXAE Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
MY SHRE—FHLFTHE X provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
5 [E 55 4 T 1 E pE B S AT TR AT 1 separate asset is recognised for any expected
BeHEERAE—HEBNEE  FiE reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount
RHEESHAUNZBEENRASH recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying
RR o amount of the provision.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESHBE 5
(t) WA RE =

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Revenue and other income

AEBBEELR XK A BRETEA
HEEY RERGAREEESE
ENBAmARRmMELENKEER

RN o

ERmIARBENIEHEEBRET, X
EAMAEREREER  BAKH
BEHEREBNRESERILA
TEERE=ZDERIGIE - KRATE
RIRENSAEMEEN  YEMRE

[EE-E SRR

B R E B R E Al Y 25 B RERR IR

ReFIFEIIT -

() HERMERMHBALEE TER
RS E 25  BERR - LA B HIBR (T

BEFM -

(i) KEHENREESRAEHER
PREM RN A SREERRPE
R EMAEMEELEE R
BRfE A EE EMS A S E A
BRON o K& THE 10 5% PO B B0 RURD
EESEBRSTERSBEHEHEF
NRBENERE D - BFIORR
R BN R a0 ] B B SR H AR

MO EH AR AERREA -

(iii) M BWAREELRKIRAERAN X

EHER ©

(iv) E A WA A B B A IR

7
o

(v) EAIAR I i REE AR A & U R
AT 68 B X FE 1T 7% 479 BY O Y 75 1R F
B AEBERE SRS MBHRREK
WS BT il B F 2A FE R - AR TR 4R
AEBCEERXNOME - §ER
XELNPEA R ER R g

RABUA

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the
right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an
accrual basis.

(v) Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FREEERE) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) S e (u) Translation of foreign currencies
RAAFIREBBLLEXEBINER A The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
HINREE M BB - M KA which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while
REEBEHNBARMNINEERA A that for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is
AR - KREBREF| B LB - Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Group is Hong

Kong dollars.
FARAMINERZ IR 5 B /YIS [E R Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
BE . PUINE BB EKEENRES at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
FERRN R ERARNINEE RIBE o dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
B H =R B P RER o foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

NELRAGTEMIINEIEEEEE Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
HEBEERRIEMIINEERRE - terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
XS5 BB AKRRN R Y)IRERZEIE using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
EEESBENB - LINERE dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
MIWA AR BEYERNIEFEEEER Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
BEERFAEANBEE ANINEEX liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
HE o in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are

translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

ERBIMESERNEBIREAT 5 BRI The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
ME RS NERBE A - B 1% into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
AR R TE B BIR R & B R /9 U T o0 approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
ERQE BB - FTELEMEN =5 dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
HHMEEmBNEPEERR AR items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
=P RORE S EE D FH Rar e foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting

period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

EHRARETBBINECEFELSRIE On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the
HEE EZKLHEBNETEL =5 cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
EHERENHHEAER - that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss

when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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1 FEFHBE @)
(v) fEERA

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Borrowing costs

HYE BEXEEFERERT A
MEARER S HENEEAEN
BAOEBERAE  AITFTURERNMERZE
ERAH—ED HMEERARE
A HRSIS o

BREEBEENAN—HoMEEK
AHEBEELRX  BEKAELEM
EEERARERARAFEEMLA
EFRTIEETHRRBERNE - &
FEEEREERARTRAGHIHEEN
VANBRE D EFETIED L TX
B BERANESEEREFELERL -

(w) B3R5

(1) MBIATAL  BIZALHZAL
R R AR E AR T -

() #EHIHARZEFIAKE
(i) HAEEBEATED 3

(i RAEB R AEET QN E AR
BEBAS -

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(w) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FREEERE)

w) R TS (48)
) WA THOMEM RN - BIhEEE
EASE AR TT

() %EREASERBR —S5H
(ANZBRFE - WEBARME R
P B8 X B {5 ALt FET A R ESE)

(i) " REBEZ—EBNBERQ
AHAZEEE (A —ERME
SEETKERANEEQF
RAERE) -

(i AIREEBER—F=ZFTWEE

=3

() —FEBRE=HERNAE
o¥ MR-KERFE=NE
BOBEAR -

v) ZEBERAKERIER/AE
EREM I NERNERNERTR
MR AOBERR RS -

BRI EAENBEAMR
THEHI RS -

R
> i

i) b2t B ()R APTREALH
EZEE%%EKE’@ﬂ‘XEEZ?E
B(IZERIAR) WERE

(viil) 7% B8 2 H AT B & B eV (R (]
BRARRAAEERAEEGR
AR EIE A B R

—REANIREEEERERRS
VA REFEZEAXZZBEAZEDN
REMKE e

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vii)A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii)The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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1 FESHEBE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x) 7 BB &
AEEEREEEABEHIGAN
HBARBRRRBMEEHEETE
BROERRBAFENOTBER - ML
BRI BHRRMETZHEIAR
MBS T T °

EREZNEEDBIE AR AHE
BREZA BUZEELEDHBNE
mAREIMHE AETFIEE  FPR
P E - DHEmBRERBOTT
FNEEERENANEEEBERFEY
BARLL - AIERI - @RI TERMNKEE
DEMRFTAEIAERE SR - AIF]
ABET °

2 ErtAERIEE

At BT RERE R
TENBHEFBETEERRNT ¢

EREEEUR MM - HEFREN

P4

A& B 5 @R E HREA MK
S8 URHEERREENAREMYE -
BBENRERESEEMBELTR - MRH
AEMEETR B EREEEN
REABYR - HR MR EEy R UL Bl BEE o
FENBEANEH e EREEE LRI
TR EL R SR & A i A A U [ BB RO (A R
BR] - FERKEERHNHEIE

(x) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether there is
any indication that right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment is estimated. Changes in
facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the
conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists and
revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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3 WARDEBEE 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) YA (a) Revenue
AEENETBEERRECEREENYD The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast
ERE - WABEETEZR MM food restaurants and property investments. Revenue
mEEEEEMBES KA » T 15 represents the sales value of food and beverages sold to
BRI EMBEER - WE IR E customers and rental income and excludes value added tax
EHH o WARIDITAT - or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts. An analysis of revenue is as follows:

KB ERMNEMIEE Sale of food and beverages at a point in time 3,023,549 2,879,467
WEHES Property rental 603 2,475
3,024,152 2,881,942
BRAREE T B EBKHE A E R E 5 Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
R disclosed below:
(b) D ZpHRE (b) Segment reporting
AEBFEBMRED 2 (BNEBERE K+ The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
A EEE) REIBER - WITRME Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants,
R=EoEMmED I - AEBDEE which are organised by geographical location. In a manner
TUTHESZRESE - GE2®HS A consistent with the way in which information is reported
HAEEESEBITHREE A B RAZL internally to the Group’s most senior executive
WMEPRMBER (UHEETERY R management for the purposes of resource allocation and
RRBIE) AR REESE performance assessment, the Group has identified the
R RAK AT HRE DTS B following two reportable segments. No operating segments
STEREE S - have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.
- BRELE: s ERBLE - Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates
B - restaurants in Hong Kong.
- HFEABEE: &S EERER — Mainland China restaurants: this segment operates
HASEE S o restaurants in Mainland China.
EMEBKSIMEEN R EERE Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
WEMEME  WEBSARER - investment properties and include corporate expenses.
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3 WARSEEE @)
(b) 7 BBIRE (42)
(i) 2 EBHM

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results

AEEEREITREEABR T
EEEREEBREDOMEHENE
B B D BRI BETT D H
BERDE :

EERENBORERL - B
E2RZF D BT E LR ATIZ
LD R E B R E D A e
BEENMEMELENSWL -

W
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RERGHA D EE N ETH o ReE
B ER D #YIE B W AR D BEER

/_t/'\ ﬁB

EEERT W ER SR8
DEERIN  BEEREFBHKRA
(BERBEMDFBHWKA) FHEE
A (BERYKA « & TR -
e REZMMERMYE  HER
BRENMERAEEETRNTE) D
DEWER - PWPZENR G EELE
BEBBRER 2FEHTMER
EEE® TERESHNEEKRR
HETT °

AEERSETHRERAS L ER
SRERBHEDOLEENES -

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results of each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit
before taxation. Items not specifically attributable to
individual segments are not allocated to the reportable
segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost,
labour cost, rent and rates and depreciation charged on
other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets). The inter-segment transactions were conducted
on normal commercial terms and were priced with
reference to prevailing market prices and in the ordinary
course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported to or used
by the Group’s most senior executive management.
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3 KARDER®E &) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) B EHE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) DERELE (E) (i) Segment results (continued)
MEBEE—_T-_=—FR T -_—F= Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
A=+—HIEEFEERD R KT as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
O HRBARNEB RS RITHRE management for the purposes of resource allocation
BABREEHEAKERE DA and assessment of segment performance for the years
BRENTX ° ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is set out below.

@ T ///‘4 Ak
Hong Kong Mainland China Other
restaurants restaurants segments

—F —T-ZF -F
2022 2023

T T
$'000 $'000

REINBEFH  Revenue from external

WA customers 2,873,125 2,733,685 150,424 145,782 603 2,475 3,024,152 2,881,942
REEMHIE  Inter-segment revenue

WA - - - - 348 393 348 393
REDBBA Reportable segment revenue 2,873,125 2,733,685 150,424 145,782 951 2,868 3,024,500 2,882,335

§ESEWER,  Reportable segment profit/

(E51#8) (loss) 106,112 108,532 (13,255) (15,690) 4,280 5,964 97,137 98,806
FEMA Interest income 14,643 3,130 68 57 46 108 14,757 3,295
FIEER Interest expense (29,183)  (29,844) (2,515) (2,560) = - (31,698)  (32,404)
E Depreciation (454,290)  (471,673) (23,449) (26,783) (922) (922)  (478,661)  (499,378)
HipE - Impairment losses on other

HEMRE property, plant and

HREE R equipment (11,024)  (15,385) (3,009) (3,575) - - (14033  (18,960)

FREEERN  Impairment losses on
HEESE right-of-use assets (20,604) (25,333) (5,996) (4,979) - - (26,600) (30,312)
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3 IRARDEERE (&) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) D EBIRE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) &2 SPEFE R (ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

R Al Profit
B T AT R 25 3 B 5 T Reportable segment profit before
taxation 97,137 98,806

REYELERIE Valuation losses on investment properties (4,840) (1,730)
HabiE - HESRERN Impairment losses on other property,

A EE plant and equipment (14,033) (18,960)
FREEENRERIE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets (26,600) (30,312)
A BRTADG F Consolidated profit before taxation 51,664 47,804

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 9
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3 WARZEBEE (&)
(b) 7 &R = ()
(i) HIBE R (iii) Geographic information

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

120

TRINRONAKERBINEBEFH
WAR ()N EBRREYE - Hib
VIR BENRE RUEERE
FIEEREEL M ER  BRE
E - ERREERAE ((HEEHFR
BEESREMNER - BFAT
i RIZ R H RS A m AR S
e MBRIREME - Hx
WM B EAREREEE - $5E
FRBEENMAESZRRZEE
WERME®LS D mBREE
HETE SRR BN B B RO P FE 2t AR R
FRDBCEMEERE D

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and goodwill (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets in the case of
investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated in the case of
goodwill.

KB N P EI A HEEFEMBEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
T =F —EF-— —Eo=F —EF-—

2023 2022 2023 2022
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
E7& (5Efb) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 2,873,282 2,733,848 1,309,064 1,345,237
B i Mainland China 150,870 148,094 128,481 147,805
3,024,152 2,881,942 1,437,545 1,493,042
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4 Hthg AFE M2 BEH 4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN

Hig A Other revenue
T2 U A Interest income 14,757 3,295
BB (M3E) Government grants (note) 17,619 58,861
32,376 62,156
HAith Wz F 80 Other net gain
REEMYE MEFARED Net loss on disposal of other property, plant
hapishel and equipment (4,819) (5,291)
FEH (BB, WS F5E Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (2,062) 2,064
BEMRBEES Electric and gas range incentives 5,412 5,735
S HEEE MR Profit on sale of redemption gifts 580 585
Eofth JE < SREV#E ) Write-back of other payables 141 1,901
HEEIE = Gain on lease modifications 7,238 6,804
Hith Others 2,648 2,309
9,138 14,107
41,514 76,263
MfizE : FEREABEFIITHR L ZEHEZES A Note: This mainly represented subsidies approved by the Finance Committee of
FRRYMERBEB T EISENE) - AF the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
BEHATRRSEESIBHLEREN - for Food Licence Holders Subsidy Scheme to cope with the operating
pressure caused by the novel coronavirus epidemic.
5 BRIRAETEF 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
MRS R (GTA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) MERA& (a) Finance costs
HEBEMNEER Interest expense on lease liabilities
(MFEE15(b)) (note 15(b)) 31,698 32,404

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 2 1
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5 BRRmAER (&)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(b) H1EE (b) Other items
FERHAR () Cost of inventories (note (i) 789,047 737,734
EER Depreciation charge
- Hs - SR E — Other property, plant and equipment 89,122 90,948
-EREEE - Right-of-use assets 389,539 408,430
ZE RN & Auditor’s remuneration
- ZEURTS — Audit services 3,553 3,853
- MRS — Tax services 179 184
- B AR — Other services 28 240
HEHHEEENER Expense relating to short-term leases 14,679 6,823
TAHEBENENTEHEE Variable lease payments not included
[DE¢C in the measurement of lease liabilities 6,469 5,507
BREYERE Building management fee 50,325 50,909
FEKEE Rentals receivable
-REMERERE — Investment properties,
% 47,000 7T less direct outgoings of $7,000
(ZZ==% :7,0007C) (2022: $7,000) (439) (2,305)
-EMgE s HEE — Other operating sub-leases (157) (163)
BB KBRERE Electricity, water and gas 175,730 154,570
Y& A Logistic expense 68,880 64,567
HIERREE Repair and maintenance 45,144 40,015
BRE Sanitation 50,349 53,309
HIgEMIONEAR Cost of subsequent replacement of
BN ER cutlery and utensils 11,058 10,727
e TEMEMEF (FEEG)) Salaries, wages and other benefits (note (ii)) 971,148 955,974
A EHFURIREHEIE R Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 48,585 46,883
AR A E B AR D B Equity-settled share-based payment
AR expenses 760 1,636
HiER Other expenses 185,453 159,989
2,899,452 2,789,830
(AE Representing:
THERKAR Cost of sales 2,767,394 2,659,381
THERH Administrative expenses 132,058 130,449
2,899,452 2,789,830

MIEEG) - FERARERBEAA

W) H#E2E—_T-_=F=A=+—0 " EAB
MR BB RITTEE B TR 5h 3 5T 219 AL

24,000,000 T (ZF==4F : &) -

Note (i): The cost of inventories represents food costs.

$24,000,000 (2022: Nil).

Note (ii): The item during the year ended 31 March 2023 was net of
employment support scheme subsidies from HKSAR Government of
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6 REESRMTHMERN 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

() IREBEERFIRNHIES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

REBE - BRFEHER

loss represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

NS Provision for the year 6,588 7,307
AEFEEEBR Over-provision in respect of prior years (60) (33)
B E (F3E20(b)) Deferred tax (note 20(b))
ErERAEEMERD Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 256 (2,110)
6,784 5,164

- /T =FENEEANE
TG EAFER G ETR T
LA165% (== — /=& = — 4 :
16.5%) MR ERFH - EAEEK — M
BB A B RS PR AR ) 115 B AR ) A9
TERBRAN o

MZMBLARME ' BRB AN E
2008 TR R 58.25%  MEI NHIfE
REE M AR 5 16.5% ° IRBEFIESH
MEH - ARBRAR —E=— /=—F=
ZEBANEHIRBRRERETSE -

HAAEERHEAMERE T —=
FM—_T-__FHEMBEE &%
BV EpZARNPEAREIMNA
([ &) At ZEATS TR ERE -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022/2023 is
calculated at 16.5% (2021/2022: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered profits tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first $2.0 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2021/2022.

No provision has been made for PRC corporate income tax

for 2023 and 2022, as the Group's Mainland China
operations sustained a loss for taxation purpose.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6 IRERBRMATHMER 2

(b) Bi1E X i ERE TR FIRBEABLE

STERHER

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

R B AT 4 ) Profit before taxation 51,664 47,804
LAT 15 556 i 4% 1 Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated
(ZZ==F : FEBmRH) at two-tiered profit tax regime
HENERBEREH (2022: two-tiered profit tax regime) 8,360 7,722
ERZ—HREERLCLHMERT  Effect of different tax rate of
KATRABENTE a subsidiary operating in
another tax jurisdiction (1,509) (2,826)
ORI ) -gusk:of; iRy -2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 5,866 4,183
BA KA IELE Tax effect of non-taxable income (9,699) (10,949)
KA ARBRORIBEELN Tax effect of unused tax losses
MIAF & not recognised 3,792 8,042
REEEFEAZ A ARERA Tax effect of previously unrecognised tax
FEMSEEB BN IR 8 losses utilised this year = (1,009)
AERNEMEREZROTBETE  Tax effect of other temporary differences
not recognised 34 34
NEFEEFERF Over-provision in respect of prior years (60) (33)
BERHREBESH Actual tax expense 6,784 5,164




B RS ¥R AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRIGAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 EEEE 7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
RIEEBCR RHEGI) 55 383(1) 5k & 55 2 & Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
(RRI(BEEEMRER) RODIIRNE the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
EMemT Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

e 2R AR B RIRGHE
ExHe REDIE BB ERESH 7t
Salaries
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
fee in kind bonus payments contributions
(BRFE )
(Note (i)
T
$'000
HITES Executive Directors
ERHEL Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,528 648 - - 7,346
EIERE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 2,532 647 266 18 3,613
Efava Ms Mak Yee Mei
(GEAD)) (note (i) 40 975 - - 6 1,021
FER/\E Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,512 324 78 18 3,082

By BT Independent
EE Non-executive
Directors

REREE Mr Ng Chi Keung

(P Gii)) (note (iii)) 180 - - _ _ 180
BREEF LA Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - = - 190
EEE L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - = = - 170
FIELE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - — - - 240
ERErs Mr Yip Cheuk Tak

(FHFEW)) (note (v)) 150 - - - _ 150

1,440 12,547 1,619 344 42 15,992

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 25
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7 EFE& &)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

o 2R
REWH

NEIETIES

X0

allowances
Directors’  and benefits

fee in kind

T
$'000

Discretionary
bonus

VAR 75
EREA S

Share-based
payments
GE)
(VeI =X0))
T

$'000

BIRGTE

R

Retirement
scheme
contributions

HITES Executive Directors
ERGEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,522 593 - - 7,285
BIEESTE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 1,987 593 514 18 3,262
e UN ] Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 2,234 297 150 18 2,849
FEE/ME Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,261 297 150 18 2,876
B IEHIT Independent

2 Non-executive

Directors

REBAE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - - 180
PRECE S Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
2B EE L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - _ 170
BRE&E Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

(FfEEGv)) (note (iv)) 75 - - - _ 75
FHE L Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - _ 240
HleEkE Mr Yip Cheuk Tak

(HEEW) (note (v)) 50 - - - _ 50

1,525 13,004 1,780 814 54 17,177
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7 EEMl& #)

FYREQ) -

A 3 G -

B (i) -

FRE (iv) -

FRE (V) -

A BEBOXNHEFRIEREAAT
HV D BRRERT IR T R L E R BN
AEHEE - Eik i BEMEERREN
Q) PTHI B B CA R 19 R ETENZ 58
AEESHBRERAE  MREZBRE - &
BIEE D E A RS TAMNR T fE
AEFER R RIARE -

BELEMN RN FE (REERTHED
ITERFNBB)BREFERETIE
AR rEET 8] — S FNFIEE19 -

EHEBMAR T = —F L ANBBIAR
RAITES -

REREE  AARBILIFNTEER
To=F=AN\BEtH-

BERSAERN-_T-_—FNANBEAR
RAVBIIFAITES °

HlEr AN B+ - A - EZE
FARRARBUIERNITES -

8 mEBieAL:
HEMNMERSNALH = (ZF =
ZF M) BARES BEMNSFBE

RHFEE7 - EBM (=T ==

: —fir)

ATHBEAFENT

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (iii):

Note (iv):

Note (v):

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as
set out in note 1(qg)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 19.

Ms Mak Yee Mei resigned as Executive Director of the Company on 6
July 2022.

Mr Ng Chi Keung, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, passed away on 8 March 2023.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo retired as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 9 September 2021.

Mr Yip Cheuk Tak was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2021.

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
individuals (2022: four individuals) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two individuals (2022: one
individual) are as follows:

FaoMmEMBe Salaries and other emoluments 3,179 1,491
VAR B E TR 2 1+ Share-based payments 126 100
RIRGETEIH R Retirement scheme contributions 36 18

3,341 1,609

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8 BEM& AL

ML (ZE-—F: DRSS ALY
MEeEATEHERA :

$1,500,001-$2,000,000

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

The emolument of two individuals (2022: one individual) with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

—EF-=
2022
AE

Number of

T =F
2023
AE

Number of

individuals

individuals

9 BREF
(@) EREREF|
EREARBNBIZBAR AT RER
A% 28 FE 15 % 744,880,000T ( = & —
Z 4 42,640,0007T) LA R E B
hnkE 19 $0129,553,000 (=T = =
©F : 129,550,000 /%) 518 - AT ¢

BBy hIHE T 8L

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $44,880,000 (2022: $42,640,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
129,553,000 shares (2022: 129,550,000 shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

— = — —

2022
frh g B
Number of

—E-=F
2023
Ringr B
Number of

EIES

T
‘000 ‘000

shares

T

WA — BB BT L@ Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 129,553 129,533
BT ERENTE Effect of share options exercised - 17
MR=A=+— B/ @& hnE Weighted average number of
Eiggr ordinary shares at 31 March 129,553 129,550
(b)BREERF (b) Diluted earnings per share

S 7 4 PO 23 ) 3 4 4 5K 77 08 10 7
ARG A ETREARFEEGR
BB EAER -
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Basic earnings per share are the same as diluted earnings
per share for both years as the Company has no potential
dilutive shares outstanding for both years.
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108 ETME - HththE S 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RiEg L1 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(a) (a)
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Investment
buildings improvements Sub-total properties
Tt T y Tt T
$'000
BAfE Cost or valuation:
R-Z-—FWmA—H At 1 April 2021 98,795 368,883 763,305 1,230,983 29,830 1,260,813
[ 5 8 Exchange adjustments 275 1,451 1,589 3,315 - 3,315
wE Additions - 25,361 49,204 74,565 - 74,565
HE Disposals - (16,663) (30,402) (47,065) - (47,065)
BN BEFEREEE Reclassification to right-of-use
assets - (790) - (790) - (790)
SHERE (z100b) Loss on revaluation (note 10(b)) - - - - (1,730) (1,730)
RZZ--_F=F=+—H At31March 2022 99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 28,100 1,289,108
R&: Representing:
B Cost 99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 - 1,261,008
HE—-Z-—&F Valuation — 2022 - - - - 28,100 28,100
99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 28,100 1,289,108
REHENRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZZE-—FNA—A At 1 April 2021 60,835 260,017 485,265 806,117 - 806,117
[& 5 A% Exchange adjustments 266 1,048 894 2,208 - 2,208
KEFEE Charge for the year 2,193 35,503 53,252 90,948 - 90,948
AERE (M 10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 812 4118 14,030 18,960 - 18,960
HEERD Written back on disposal - (15,918) (25,714) (41,632) - (41,632)
BMOBEFRERE Reclassification to right-of-use
assets - (790) - (790) - (790)
RZZ-—F=F=+—F At31March2022 64,106 283,978 527,727 875,811 - 875,811
HREFE: Net book value:
RZE-ZF=FA=+—H At31March 2022 34,964 94,264 255,969 385,197 28,100 413,297

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 29
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108 ETME - Hth'hE RS MEHH 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REELH &) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)
BEYE
M HRIRE Hin&E et BREME
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total properties
T Tt T T T
$'000 $'000
RARMEE : Cost or valuation:
RZE--_#MA—H At 1 April 2022 99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 28,100 1,289,108
[& 5 % Exchange adjustments (522) (3,301) (3,284) (7,107) - (7,107)
BE Additions - 36,637 68,034 104,671 - 104,671
HeE Disposals - (26,649) (41,706) (68,355) - (68,355)
BEEE (E100) Loss on revaluation (note 10(b)) = = = = (4,840) (4,840)
RZE-=F=A=+—H At31March 2023 98,548 384,929 806,740 1,290,217 23,260 1,313,477
Rk Representing:
R Cost 98,548 384,929 806,740 1,290,217 - 1,290,217
BE—-Z==% Valuation — 2023 - - - - 23,260 23,260
98,548 384,929 806,740 1,290,217 23,260 1,313,477
REAHERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
i Y el =| At 1 April 2022 64,106 283,978 527,727 875,811 - 875,811
[E 5 AR Exchange adjustments (506) (2,251) (1,886) (4,643) - (4,643)
NEEEE Charge for the year 2,160 34,434 52,528 89,122 - 89,122
AEREE (FEE10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 242 4,944 8,847 14,033 = 14,033
HERED Written back on disposal - (26,058) (37,447) (63,505) - (63,505)
RZZ-=F=FA=+—H At31March 2023 66,002 295,047 549,769 910,818 - 910,818
REFE: Net book value:
RZE-=ZF=A=+—H At31March 2023 32,546 89,882 256,971 379,399 23,260 402,659
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108 ETME - HththE S 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REgLH &) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(a) (#) (a) (continued)
REEMERASHEHITAT : The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the

Group is as follows:

HETHMEEY (BRRAE) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost

ERBERNNREREE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 71,090

ERBEINN T EEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,458 27,980
98,548 99,070

REWE (REHE) Investment properties, at valuation

EHBEINNFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 23,260 28,100

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10\ BYE - Rtk - BRI
RERLM )

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND

(continued)

(b)MEN LD AEETE
(i) 2REERBR

AEBEN RS BRIZEEEEME
ENMERAREE - ZFWECH
MNERIBRELEANDE13HRIA
AEEFAEIRREN=EIAE
BEER AEE2RUTHETA
AN E AENTBRIEENE
2l KMEEAAEBEFEHE
PSR BB E AR -

- FERMBKE: REAE—E
FNE(NHEREELEER
FAEAHAEERMISNREH
BERE) KT BEAAEE-

- FERME: CRAEZER
BAEBREE—ERNATE
RGAE) WIHRES K AEH
RABRAEALBE T
BN AERERRTISEH
BREAME -

- ESEGMEE: RAEATA
BREA BRI EAREE -

FEREMEER T =M=
T _F=A=t+—BRETEMH-
EMTED R BB ER
Fr—hBETEENEBEREARA
AkPHEEENEBEREGRAR
T RAEMTHE THARA
BEER HMEGREMENR
b B AR R B R R B o A
SEEREECRASMIRERS
HIRETHENRERME

NR-E-_=FN-_ZT__F=H=
+—H AEEMREKREDESNU
LM E=AREEERE -

(b) Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis are categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2023 and 2022 by independent firms of surveyors,
Sinoappraisal Advisory Limited and Asset Appraisal
Limited respectively, who has staff with recognised
professional qualifications and relevant experience in
the location and category of investment properties
being revalued. The Group’s management has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, all of the Group's
investment properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above.



B RS ¥R AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRIGAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

108 ETME - HththE S 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

gL &) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(b) MEN D REERE (&) (b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) F=ZBRAABEFENER (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
ek HEFE N E R AE
Location of properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input
R A - RS HELEDA BEMHE S PSR (20%)E 0%
(F:8)wfE TECF  (20%)E0%)
Mainland China — Direct comparison (Discount)/premium on (20%) to 0%
Commercial properties approach quality of the buildings (2022: (20%) to 0%)
AR REAAIREMENALE The fair values of investment properties located in
B 2FREELSEETE &+ Mainland China are determined by using direct
BERELYENTE  WiK2=E comparison approach with reference to the market
REMELEYE 2 MEFHEEL A price of comparable properties and adjusted for
B mEIMZENREDEEBER building quality and timing of the reference
ENAAEBETEEE - transactions. Higher discount for investment properties

will result in a lower fair value measurement.

15 LE( PA R B A D RO B B W) A AR The movement of these investment properties in
AR EBIIT - Mainland China during the year is as follows:
FT
$'000
RZZT=Z—FMA—H At 1 April 2021 29,830
fHEEE Valuation losses (1,730)
RZZEZ_F=R=+—H At 31 March 2022 28,100
RZZE-—FMWMA—AH At 1 April 2022 28,100
HEBE Valuation losses (4,840)
R-E-_=F=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2023 23,260
(0 EMEEBRERM - &F - 2R2HK 7 (c) Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
B -EREARVABEENTIXEA plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial

KEsll ° purchases of cutlery and utensils.

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 33
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10RTHE - - HthE - BRI 10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
RESLTH 2) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(AEARFERN AEEEREUNREE (d)During the year, the Group’'s management identified

134

HEBETIEARENGHEN  BEAT
BEREBEEFBERE WHEETE
LEEFAEEENREMYE .
B R A ] IR B 85 RIBME
E FRNELEFREEENREM
ME BENZENEREELSED
2 8 {26,600,000T ( — & = — 4F :
30,312,0007T ) %% 14,033,000 ( ==
— — 4 :18,960,0007T ) ° & {F A (B
BfE THEEIKREEHAERRE
% B & 5T R YR Bl £ %8 A& 17,630,000 70
—EC_F: ZTHEENESER
26,607,0007C) ° BRUL BASN - FIBE S
FREEENREMYE  #BRME
BHWECEEER(ZE_—F
BREABFTHEEEAREMYE - #
AR A ] UL B S BEE(K) o AT R [E
HEMGLTRERNEAREENRE
i  EEMZEOEREE F/H
AR EI16% (ZE - —4F : 14%)
EE -

it RENBEREAEEEARE
b % - B MR EOREBIEFHE
% Bl /26,600,000 ( = = =
30,312,0007T ) 1 14,033,0007C ( = &
— — % :18,960,0007T) °

e R—ZT-_=F=A=+—8"' EAXK

EB IO HEBRRIFTEEITERNY
¥REEEAS21,000T( ==
£ :921,0007T) ©

certain individual restaurants, a cash generating unit for
impairment assessment purpose, which under-performed
and estimated the recoverable amounts of the right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment of these
restaurants. Based on these estimates, the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment was written down by $26,600,000 (2022:
$30,312,000) and $14,033,000 (2022: $18,960,000)
respectively during the year. The aggregate recoverable
amounts of ten of these restaurants amounted to
$17,630,000 based on their value in use net of relevant
lease liabilities (2022: thirty of these restaurants amounted
to $26,607,000). Apart from the above, the recoverable
amounts of the remaining impaired right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment were minimal (2022:
the recoverable amounts of the remaining impaired right-
of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
were minimal). The estimates of recoverable amount were
based on the value in use of these right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment, determined using a
pre-tax discount rate of 16% (2022: 14%).

As a result, impairment losses of right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment of $26,600,000 (2022:
$30,312,000) and $14,033,000 (2022: $18,960,000) were
recognised during the year.

(e) At 31 March 2023, the net book value of properties

pledged as security for banking guarantees granted to
certain subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $821,000
(2022: $921,000).
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108 ETME - HththE S 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

gL &) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(f) AEBUKLHAERHEEME - 5 (f) The Group leases out investment properties under
LEHEVL AR —FETF - FEHM operating leases. The leases initially run for one to ten
EATBESRERS NEERET years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The
ARERECEHERE B RERNRE Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
HENRELEWT cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

—F R Within one year 4,253 4,768
—FEBEREA After one year but within two years - 4,253
4,253 9,021
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MERESE 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
PAFTER AR
ABRR)  DAIRERA  UIRERA
FEERH ABRE ABRHY
HELTH  HIEBRH #ES - EHA
B REER HAt ¥z
Ownership
interests in Other
leasehold land properties machinery and
held for own leased for own equipment,
use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
T F T
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Cost:
RZZZ—FMOA—H At 1 April 2021 8,098 2,007,872 13,397 2,029,367
bE i R Exchange adjustments - 4,198 21 4,219
8= Additions - 188,319 80 188,399
HEBE Lease modifications - 220,900 3,028 223,928
HeE Disposals - (78,564) (230) (78,794)
RZEZZF=A=+—H  At31March 2022 8,098 2,342,725 16,296 2,367,119
EFTENRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZE-—FHMA—H At 1 April 2021 3,294 908,442 7,022 918,758
[E & 2 Exchange adjustments - 1,839 15 1,854
AREEE Charge for the year 183 404,525 3,722 408,430
A EREE (M 10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 339 29,743 230 30,312
HERED Written back on disposal - (70,749) (230) (70,979)
RZZE-=F=A=+—H  At31March 2022 3,816 1,273,800 10,759 1,288,375
REFE Net book value:
“T--_FZA=Z+—H  At31March2022 4,282 1,068,925 5,537 1,078,744
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MERERE &)

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

PAFTE A
ABRH]
FiEE A®
HE T
BEREER
Ownership
INEE
leasehold land
held for own

AT AR
IN: -0/
HIEER&
Hiomx

Other
properties
leased for own

ATERA

s B

machinery and
equipment,

use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
Tt T FIT
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Cost:
RZE-_ZFWA—H At 1 April 2022 8,098 2,342,725 16,296 2,367,119
PE i R Exchange adjustments - (11,332) 41) (11,373)
gy Additions - 87,504 75 87,579
HEBIE Lease modifications = 297,832 2,890 300,722
B Disposals = (128,021) (1,180) (129,201)
RZE-_=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2023 8,098 2,588,708 18,040 2,614,846
EFIENRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZZE-—FMA—H At 1 April 2022 3,816 1,273,800 10,759 1,288,375
[E 7 A Exchange adjustments - (5,354) (41) (5,395)
AREE Charge for the year 169 386,177 3,193 389,539
A EREE (M 10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 101 26,393 106 26,600
HE R D Written back on disposal = (117,110) (1,048) (118,158)
RZZE-=ZF=ZA=+—H  At31March 2023 4,086 1,563,906 12,969 1,580,961
REFE Net book value:
WZZ-_=F=A=+—H  At31March 2023 4,012 1,024,802 5,071 1,033,885

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MEREEE &) 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
REENEEN B FERELAENEmEE The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
DTEHIIAT - class of underlying asset is as follows:

LITERAABEHSME  Ownership interests in leasehold land held for
BAMEE tiERE own use, carried at depreciated cost

R 4,012 4,282
DAMTER AN AR FE Other properties leased for own use, carried
BREMEMYE at depreciated cost (i) 1,024,802 1,068,925
PAYTER A ABRAH#EE «  Plant, machinery and equipment, carried
M N R at depreciated cost (i) 5,071 5,537
1,033,885 1,078,744

A ER AR ABREYIE/E  Ownership interests in leasehold land and
BERAMEELESE buildings held for own use, carried at
MIREE B HERESS - HF|  depreciated cost, with remaining lease term
HEEHMETEEZR T between 10 and 50 years

F2ME 32,546 34,964
AR BEAERNEE Ownership interests in leasehold investment
EMENREERERE property, carried at fair value, with remaining
&= AR ERE lease term between 10 and 50 years
+FEER+FH 23,260 28,100
55,806 63,064
1,089,691 1,141,808
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MNERBRE =)
Fis() AEEAn Ry

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Note (i) Other properties leased for own use

PR (i)

AEEERBEEHRESEREMYE
ERTEELREFENET - ZFHER
BVRBRA=ZR AFL HEREERE -

REBEE-_ZT_=F=-A=1+—RHIFE"
AEBEETZREE  HPREERE
BEEHRSNETNREFERENK
RO AT BHAENKIER - AEHRERIER
KZEMW10% E20% (ZFE-—F : 10% =
20%) MR ERTASHWEERET - B4
NRERERRAEELCENTEERE -

BEEMNRALBEES AL AEWE - R
ZZE-=F=F=1+—H8 " BRETAHK
MO MHERESRE—FRAR—F%ER
FAARRAHESBRELES B A
630,0007T (—Z = — 4 : 2,274,0007T) &
T (ZZF = =4 :630,0007T) °

HibEE

AEBE AR B RSREHEEE RS —
FERF - ETHERSHEMA GREHR
MR AR HE R RAE -

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its retail
stores and office through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 3 to 5 years with renewal options.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group leased a number of
restaurants which contain variable lease payment terms that are based
on revenue generated from the restaurants and minimum annual lease
payment terms that are fixed. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2022: 10% to 20%) of the
revenue over the base rents. These payment terms are common in
restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group operates.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group. At 31
March 2023, the total future minimum sublease payments expected to
be received under non-cancellable subleases within one year and after
one year but within five years were $630,000 (2022: $2,274,000) and
$Nil (2022: $630,000) respectively.

Note (ii) Other leases

The Group leases plant, machinery and equipment under leases
expiring from 1 to 6 years. Some leases include an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1MERAERE &) 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
HRERTERZANEERENEREE The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised
DI : in profit or loss is as follows:

RIZMEEDENEREEE Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
WEER by class of underlying asset:
BEERAWHE T W ESEER Ownership interests in leasehold land
held for own use 169 183
HEEAME M E Other properties leased for own use 386,177 404,525
HEES - B AN ER M Plant, machinery and equipment 3,193 3,722
389,539 408,430
DITERKRARARNFES AL Ownership interests in leasehold land and
THE TR EY R A buildings held for own use, carried at
o AFMEEHETFZE depreciated cost, with remaining lease
A+FEZH term between 10 and 50 years 2,160 2,193
391,699 410,623
HeEaEMNEER (KFEsa) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 31,698 32,404
HEHEERENER Expense relating to short-term leases 14,679 6,823
TMAHEaGEESNAIEHE Variable lease payments not included
INE ¢ in the measurement of lease liabilities 6,469 5,507
RNEE L AREE ELNN87,579,0007T (= During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
T4 :188,399,0007T) - Z L BEE $87,579,000 (2022: $188,399,000). This amount primarily
EREHHE R RENNERNMEBENK related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
B - tenancy agreements.
HERSRLABENHEESENHARS T Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
RFFA{E B RIS I FE 15 F117 ° analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 15(c) and 17
respectively.
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1288 12 GOODWILL

RA(RWA—BER=A=+—H) Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001
BEHMENReELE THRENR Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill
BB 5 E AL BIRRL L [R5 Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
DEMEENRSELEIT - FIBEWT : ("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and

business segment as follows:

ZEE _ BN Restaurants — Mainland China 1,001 1,001

ReEHBITHAIKREHZERAEFRERE The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on

SEEET - GEAEHEAFERTEREE value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
R EE AR EEANAFRERE projections based on financial budgets approved by
TR o management covering a five-year period.
STEFEREEMNTE/RRK Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

EAR Gross margin 9% 8%
ERE Growth rate 5% 5%
P Discount rate 16% 14%

EREREBBERRMYEMBSERNTES Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on

EEBEEEMNEK - AR R ER A past performance and their expectation for market
FIRK WkBEBSERSE TEBENEAE development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
BEk - specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.
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13FH 13 INVENTORIES

Q) FEHM BN KRRV EZE R : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

BmkEkE Food and beverages 50,058 50,606
HRER - BEMER Consumables, packaging materials and
H e other sundry items 5,566 6,672
55,624 57,278
b)ERALZENEEEEINAOT - (b)The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense is as follows:

EEFENRESHE Carrying amount of inventories sold 788,889 737,055
T & SRR Write-down of inventories 158 679
789,047 737,734
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14 FE M IR = 0 3 fth FE s 2% 14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEUWER X (B HIRR EIEER) Trade debtors, net of loss allowance 9,663 17,288
H A R Other receivables 17,906 51,301
ENHEEMAREELS Rental and utility deposits paid 43,901 51,483
FEURFR & 3K Lease receivables 626 2,239
SEUNEN Prepayments 17,937 22,353
90,033 144,664
& T & 57,407,0000( — & — — All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart
6,103,00070) WA EEZ SN AEH from certain utility deposits totalling $7,407,000 (2022:
i FEURERER R FIEN FRIBRT AT R — $6,103,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as an
FAN B ERRBI L expense within one year.
BRER AT Ageing analysis

AR HISR + 5l 7E FE U BR 20 R0 £ Ab g U 2k As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

THEKER (BHNBRERER) HRE D trade debtors (which are included in trade and other

MABEBBRTE) T - receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

—Z=+1H 1 to 30 days 8,737 15,404
=+—ZNTH 31 to 90 days 790 1,882
nt+—=—8BN+H 91 to 180 days 85 2
—BNAt+—ZE=/THA 181 to 365 days 51 _
9,663 17,288
AEEEBRETHNHERITEUR The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash and
EREFIMNEE - REEGKTFRERE e-payment basis. The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to
BRI BEENF=1tZL+HHNE 75 days to certain customers to which the Group provides
BHY o catering services.
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SRTERRAESMAESFR/RD 15 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
@ RTERRBAESNRESEEY (a)Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
BE: comprise:

SRITIER Deposits with banks 496,261 305,097
SRR E Restricted cash 3,248 18,789
RITTF RS Cash at bank and on hand 87,249 233,216
FERERERMTHREHN Cash and cash equivalents in the
REZEY consolidated cash flow statement 586,758 557,102
HaiE =8 A ViR TR Bank deposits over three months 60,000 -
646,758 557,102
AEBXRHNRSBEEESTFA Restricted cash of the Group represents fund deposited
BB A b ) E BT B A R Y FE T SR 1T into a designated bank account of operating subsidiaries in
RP - WERAEZMBARRABAE the Mainland China. Such fund is available to the subsidiary
EREHEEMEEREE RS &HE when needed to manage its short-term cash commitments
REEA - BRULA®RIN - (X RITERP S arising from its ordinary business activities. Other than the
IREIR S 2 2R HAY o specified uses, the cash withdrawal from such bank

account is restricted.
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1SBTERRENRSEFR/M &)

(b) REBMEFHHNEEHRK :

TERARBAKEREZDNAESR
5 eRRSRIFREEE - KA
RELZINARERSRENRKE
CRERAKEGARACRERNT
RRERELZHRERENAE -

15 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Lease liabilities

(Pf5E17)
(Note 17)
T
$'000
R-ZB-_—-FWMA—H At 1 April 2021 1,218,542
RMERERZ2EE ! Changes from financing cash flows:
ENHEERESHE RIS Capital element of lease rentals paid (427,548)
ENEERSOF B Interest element of lease rentals paid (32,404)
BEAR S RSB Total changes from financing cash flows (459,952)
ERAE Exchange adjustments 2,935
Hih &5 Other changes:
HEaEMNEEA (KMEsa) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 32,404
FRNRIZFHEEENHER EEN Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the year 183,135
HEBIE Lease modifications 217,656
HE+HE Lease disposal (8,490)
Hh & EhaaEa Total other changes 424.705
R-B-_—_F=H=+—H At 31 March 2022 1,186,230

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1SBTERERBAESNRSEFR/M @)

(b) REBMEZHNEEHNK : (&)

15 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (continued)

Lease liabilities
(fFEE17)

(Note 17)
Tt
$'000

R-ZZB-_—_FWMA—H At 1 April 2022 1,186,230
RMERERZ2EE ! Changes from financing cash flows:
ENHERSHERILS Capital element of lease rentals paid (413,868)
ENHEERSNF B Interest element of lease rentals paid (31,698)
AR SRS EEsE Total changes from financing cash flows (445,566)
ELARE Exchange adjustments (7,104)
Hitb & Other changes:
HEaEd s ER (HE5a) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 31,698
FRNRIZFHEEENHER EEN Increase in lease liabilities from entering into

new leases during the year 78,323
AEEE Lease modifications 300,810
HELE Lease disposal (17,938)
Hih #8458 Total other changes 392,893

R-ZBZ=F=ZA=+—H

At 31 March 2023

1,126,453
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15BRTEFRASMRESEETY =) 15 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(c) HERSRB AL (c) Total cash outflows for leases
BERBREAHEERERNTHESS Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement
BIE for leases comprise the following:

KRB MA Within operating cash flows 21,148 12,330
BMERSRA Within financing cash flows 445,566 459,952
466,714 472,282

16 FE T AR =R F0 . fth FE 1 &% 16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BN BRFAER B A Creditors and accrued expenses 376,664 320,347
SHAaE Contract liabilities 5,675 6,520
o Ath FE A< SRR E YA Other payables and deferred income 16,239 17,357
SRS Rental deposits received 1,958 204
400,536 344,428
RTETEMENRMELTKASG All of the trade and other payables, apart from certain other
7,156,000 (= Z = — £ : 8,961,0007T) payables and deferred income totalling $7,156,000 (2022:
HN o BT FEAST BR FOR E 4b FE A SR TEER AS D $8,961,000), are expected to be settled or recognised as
—FRNEBRERERA AR —FR income or are repayable within one year.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16 EFEFRMEMEMSR 2) 16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
JEATBRFRANE b FE M B FE IR B 2= B Bt Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
EHEMERR  MERREHROERER D on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
W the end of the reporting period:

—&E=+H 1 to 30 days 125,045 104,122
=+t—Zh+H 31 to 90 days 83 855
ht+—=—8/N+H 91 to 180 days 491 1,011
—BNAt+t—E=A~THH 181 to 365 days 40 19
—F LAk Over one year 165 170
125,824 106,177
HEEAN AN EBSEELETENZE Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
NFAEREF AT contract liabilities recognised are as followings:

AREB T THHERPREEREEERS The Group occasionally receives consideration when the

R UECE B - HEWATEBE TP E KK customers purchase coupons from the restaurants at the time

HEMEEREL B TERSNEEREAL of purchase. The respective revenue is expected to be

HARFAERR o recognised when the coupons are redeemed for future sales
by customers from restaurants or when the coupons expire.
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16 BRI EMERRR &) 16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
EHEEBENESH Movements in contract liabilities

R A— B/ &% Balance at 1 April 6,520 10,587
FREBRTAFNEHOBED Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WA MEREE B ERD recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (6,179) (8,100)
BEERFEHNANEERD Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
expiring of coupons (341) (2,487)
] 4 1A e R TR LSRR A T 3 A Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
ARBEERD recognising revenue for advance received
during the year (7,244) (6,416)
AFRBEITERSMERKA Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
ABHRBEEM issuance of coupons during the year 12,919 12,936
R=ZA=+—HWO#&H Balance at 31 March 5,675 6,520
FBEEHNBERBAIR —FALELER All of the contract liabilities are expected to be settled or
BIA o recognised as income within one year.
178481 17 LEASE LIABILITIES
THRENTAEENHEAGZRBER The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
HARR - of the Group's lease liabilities:

—F R Within one year 393,575 410,072
—FREWMEAN After 1 year but within 2 years 303,582 309,798
MEZBERFR After 2 year but within 5 years 378,759 403,725
AFE After 5 years 50,537 62,635
732,878 776,158

1,126,453 1,186,230

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18 REEBFEF 18 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

150

AEEBREBCRFIELEE RG]
MWRE  SREBEBFE(ERGIDINRER
ERANEE  RuBGEAESHE (57
EeErE]) - BESHIR —EREHRK
RS ABYMRIEAETE - RIER
Beitd  BEMEESARRES AR
ABHS%ABEEEFHE: BF
HevEBA LS ERA30,000L(ZF ==
% ©30,0007T) ° [A &t & 1t &Y 1 5K B
BB -

AEBESEAIMEEANEERBRE
BHHBEARLAR B EHEEMNR
EHFCRRE BIVRE

VPEUNESEENURGAERNHTS

ARBM—_F——FNLAELARAN—ABE
Pt &) ([ Bt &) -

RIBERE S EFERENEEFE
MAKERENERNEE E=(BHEF
HITESRBYFRTESR) ARRAR
SEFBRAEAERAREZBRE - LR
BARXRIED - HEBISER T =18
THRSE ()N ELAREBMEA
BEXMEOROKTHE : (NRERRD
FHATAEE XA ERRAE R RERM
B0 B 0 P 15 e B K (i) B A0 I © BR
EEgEFTYRARNBREENDITH
S RE R HERT 81 W AR AR IR TT E U A
ARANRESR - BOBRERTHA
AR AR AL B AR

RZZF-_—FNAANE  NRFEEE
FCER - ARRFBRE S ER
REEITR T -_—FLANBERB
ER# o

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $30,000 (2022: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 September 2011, the Company adopted an option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the Share Option Scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

On 6 September 2021, the Share Option Scheme had expired.
A new share option scheme of the Company was approved by
the shareholders of the Company and adopted on 9
September 2021.
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PUESEFMLKRNCSERNES 19EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(&) (continued)

(@) UTRERFER THEBREMNIER (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
MG - FIEBRENEREER during the year are as follows, whereby all options
RO EEE are settled by physical delivery of shares:

RE AR

BIREHE HEEE & K H

Average

Number of contractual life

Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options

RTEEHHIRE -

Options granted to Directors:

-ZE-RFWA=+H 320,000 AR-T-—REFHA-—RE-T-_4F 7.0%

=ZA=+—BHEAS A#RITE
—20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

-“E-R%+A=H 33,000 ARZFE-—ARF+A-HE-ZT-_— 7.0%
NA=+BHEAS AR
— 2 October 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 October 2016 to 30 September 2022

- -FFELARHA 40,000 AR —FHA-RBEZZT_LF 6.7
—A=+—BHERS A#LITE
—6July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

_—E-EENATA 1,600,000 FR-E-—FEA-BE-T_LF 66%
ZRA=+—HEHARY ARITE
—10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period from 6.6 years

1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 5 1
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PUESEFEMLKRMOCSERNES 19EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)

(@) UTRERFER THEBREMNIERR (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
MG - FIEBREHEBEER during the year are as follows, whereby all options
RO EE (&) are settled by physical delivery of shares: (continued)

fE A

il BaRERE 5 T E HE

Average

Number of contractual life

Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options

BT RS MHEAE

Options granted to employees:

-—ZET—hFWA=+H 1,106,500 AR_TE-—REMNA-HBE_T_— 705

ZA=+—BHEAS A#ITE
—20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

-—EF-N\F+=A+N\AH 30,000 AIR-ZT-AF+A-BE-Z_HF 6.8%F
NA=+HEMAD ARLITHE
— 18 December 2018 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.8 years

from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2025

-—ZE-TF+AKH 710,000 AR-T-—FHA-HE-_T_AF 6.7%
=RA=t+—BHRAAY BRITRE
-6 July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

_—E-TENBTE 700000 FR=B=—FMA-AE-F-LF 6.6
—A=+—BHERS A#LTE
— 10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.6 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

-ZZE-EF+-A=+H 300,000 AIR-ZFE-_—F+-_A—HEZZ_+F 6.9%F
+—A=+BEHHAS AR
— 30 December 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.9 years

from 1 December 2021 to 30 November 2027
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PUESEFMLKRNCSERNES 19EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(&) (continued)
(b) BRENSEE FMNEFEHTEE (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
T of share options are as follows:
2022
I IR
IfEE  EAREHE 1B  EAREHE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
REEARITEE Outstanding at the beginning of
the year $18.41 4,839,000 $18.47 5,286,000
RERNTTHE Exercised during the year - - $17.08 (20,000)
RERKIL Lapsed during the year $19.94  (1,909,000) $19.19 (427,000
RERBARITE Outstanding at the end of the
year $17.41 2,930,000 $18.41 4,839,000
RERAITE Exercisable at the end of the year $17.59 731,000 $20.18 1,790,000
BIE—ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HIFE The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
A BATEERERITE AR INETF shares options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2022
HREA1708L BHIE =T == was $17.08. There was no option exercised during the year
“A=+—BLEFERN WETFEE ended 31 March 2023.
RZTE_=F=ZA=+—BK1TEE The options outstanding at 31 March 2023 had a weighted
EMNEFEHTEER17.41T(Z average exercise price of $17.41 (2022: $18.41) and a
TTZF 0 18417T) - mANKEFEH R weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.06 years (2022:
AHRHER B406F (ZF =4 : 3.53 3.53 years). The number of the shares that may be issued
F) e RFERAIZEITHRMD S B E 2 during the year represents 1.4% of the weighted average
TR 2 MET AT 1.4% © number of issued shares.
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QU ESEENLERGCEBERNIES 19EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(%) (continued)
(c) BBRREN A A BEMMERE
METEREMESREN A AE
CR2REUBRTERENRARE
Bzt MEERA=EAEHET
ELEEr - ERENESNEHERESE
AR AE - =B BEEA 4
BERPITEIENTER -

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on a trinomial
lattice model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the trinomial lattice model.

Z_TF R-TTFE R_T_TF
TtARBET NA+HEET +=-HA=+H
B i A e R T HERE
Options Options Options
granted at granted at
10 August 30 December

granted at
6 July
2020 2020 2020

154

BRENDAEEN Fair value of share options and
FrERR assumptions
R EENAREE Fair value at measurement date $1.79 $1.65 $1.71
A% B Share price $17.90 $17.08 $17.76
7B Exercise price $17.90 $17.08 $17.76
Ta AR E Expected volatility 20.29% 20.58% 20.82%
HBAREHAMR (LA =B\ BhMEFEAY  Option life (expressed as weighted
Fit AR 60 I 9 BARR 51 7R ) average life under trinomial
lattice model) 6.7 % years 6.6 % years 6.9 F years
TEHRAR Bl e &= Expected dividend yield 4.08% 4.27% 45%
ERRFE (ZREBEUT Risk-free interest rate (base on
BEHBEFTH) Hong Kong Government Bond
Yield) 0.39% 0.24% 0.49%

B BEERBERBEERT - A&
BETEMESRERETRNAR
BER WIEEZEEREN - BT
fn HA 4 B 30 B 75 (] B2 TR 45 B R &Y
fR A o

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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203 M BRAETMATHMER 20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
() &R & B SR R P R B A BA R (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
BA financial position represents:

REEEEFESHER Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year 6,588 7,307

BT E TSR Provisional Profits Tax paid (6,214) (17,706)
374 (10,399)

Rk : Representing:

AU Bl AN HR R TR Current tax recoverable (32) (10,440)

FEAH A H3FL B Current tax payable 406 41
374 (10,399)
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20 EMBRARATHMRSIR (E  20INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

L) EEIFELEHBEERERE (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
BELE MM R RERNIELRIA The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
(BE)/BENERSIOUREBEE=Z recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
=M E_—_#F#=A=+—H1t position and the movements during the years ended 31
FREESHMT - March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

BB AE A MISEE
®"E WEOHE AJ 75 2R Y
MEE L R AT 7
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess Future
of investment of related benefit of
properties depreciation tax losses
T T T+
$'000 $'000 $'000

RETHREMNELSBIIE : Deferred tax arising from:

MoZT-—&pmA—8  At1April 2021 1,604 (2,841) (903) (2,140)
FE4RAEEERF (5FA),  (Credited)/charged to the
537 (Mi7E6(a)) consolidated statement of
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (654) (2,359) 903 (2,110)
N-ZE-—F=HA=+—H At31 March 2022 950 (5,200) - (4,250)
R-ZT-—%FpmA—Q At 1 April 2022 950 (5,200) - (4,250)
HErABEET (5EA),  (Credited)/charged to the
FI37 (FsE6(a)) consolidated statement of
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (950) 1,206 - 256
WZZTZ=F=HF=+—H At31March 2023 - (3,994) - (3,994)

iR A AR R ERH Net deferred tax assets recognised
RIEFRIBE EFE in the consolidated statement of
financial position (4,070) (5,336)
E4R A ISR RFERH Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
RERIBEEFE in the consolidated statement of
financial position 76 1,086

(3,994) (4,250)
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20 iR MBRARATHOMRER (2)

() RERNWELEHIBEEE -
NEB MK R IEBSIE
158,069,000 t( — & — — 4:
135,086,0007T ) & & T M B 2 & &
AT 008 B = 25,013,000t ( = &
— T % :4,8050007T ) ERBBEHN
BEMBEE EAATEEERER
A BE-_E-_=F=A=+—8"
EREEBTIAAEEEBRKEER
SR EFBEEEIENRRER
A e BR T AP B A B A B M IE
&5 $8120,918,000 0 ( — & — — & :
97,935,0007T) R IEIR1TH BT %A B
BAHHBBAFREEN  BIKER
I8 - BEIERBETRERRE -

21 %R

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the cumulative tax losses of $158,069,000 (2022:
$135,086,000) and deductible temporary differences of
$5,013,000 (2022: $4,805,000) of certain subsidiaries as
management of the Group considers that it is not probable
as at 31 March 2023 that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions. Other than tax losses of
subsidiaries in Mainland China of $120,918,000 (2022:
$97,935,000) which have an expiry period of five years
from the date of incurrence under existing PRC tax
legislation, these tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

21PROVISIONS

SIS EIER AR Provision for reinstatement costs for rented
premises 68,254 68,080
B BAIRBAE/EEE Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (20,804) (26,603)
47,450 41,477

HE SN EERAER

Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises

HEA—A At 1 April 68,080 66,227
FHREBINER Additional provision made 2,449 4418
REIERS Provision utilised (2,275) (2,565)
R=ZA=+—H At 31 March 68,254 68,080

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21 %l (&)
HESFTNEERAEE (&)

RIFEET AT NEERHHROGER - KAE
B AR AR R A B 15 o JE m S SRR S 1E TR
B5M BRERARASEARE - Bt
AEEC BB ELENBEKRARRE
fhaETRT e

2RUEBREERE

21 PROVISIONS (continued)

Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises
(continued)

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant rental
agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate
of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.

22 LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATION

RHRBeET Long service payment obligation 26,177 21,398
B EAITRBEGEINERE Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (1,903) (1,178)
24,274 20,220

w

BEEFNTRREM (EEBRFD R =%
ZFERAEBRRTE 7025 ER M
RKRFHEDAD GRIE R HE) (BR]) &P E
RITEFDERD  WHEEANERRE
BEHARTE SR IE R R E S IR
HEMBMERRES (RERBE]) W
ZHE (R HE]) ©

REBFBBFNBA - BIDERER =
T_RhFERAA-BRER-BI ()MEE
AEBERBRESHRNREES (BR
ERREEAZA B EEENS
i Bk B BRI (3K R SE IR BB R
Z AR RBRBEE : (i) EBREE R Z A
MEMREEEERBERN—EANT
ARBERERENREFRETHE -
BAl ARERRHEEMEBNEER
BB R ERMRESEE - EFBRA
BEEHESIA IR B A 8 UEBEIR
BE ISR 2 RO KRR E S -

B A AR B B AT R BRI € /58
BeH R RE RS ERETEELS
EREBERD  KRRARBHWET R
BOOBEREMUGEREMBREHS - &
£74,779,000 7T B9 AR F5 B AN B HERR A & HP

fisEigl)

Note:

The Government of the Hong Kong SAR (“The HKSAR Government”)
gazetted the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) in June 2022, which abolishes the use of
the accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory contributions
under the MPF Scheme to offset severance payment and long service
payment (“LSP”) (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).

The Amendment Ordinance has prospective effect from 1 May 2025 (the
“Transition Date”) as announced by the HKSAR Government. In
particular, (i) employers may continue to use the accrued benefits
derived from their MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions
made before, on or after the Transition Date, and irrespective of
mandatory or voluntary contributions) to offset employees’ pre-
transition portion of LSP; (i) pre-transition portion of LSP of employees
will be calculated on the basis of the last month’s salary immediately
preceding the Transition Date and the years of service as at the
Transition Date. Currently, the Group does not have any separate
funding arrangement in place to meet its long service payment
obligation. However, the HKSAR Government is expected to introduce
a subsidy scheme to assist employers after the abolition.

As the amount of accrued benefits under the MPF Scheme that can be
used to offset pre-transition LSP is expected to decrease once the
abolition of the Offsetting Arrangement takes effect, the expected
reduction in the related negative benefits in the future has been
attributed to each employee’s past and current service periods. Service

cost of $4,779,000 has been recognised in profit or loss in the current
year.
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23 F XM 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) REBELGLAEZRH T EAKE D 8 H (a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
VEBREMYEE  HINESR2E balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
R RREEHE - equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 82.

(b) 2 (b) Dividends
() BAKNEEREMADTESREY (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
(= Company attributable to the year

EEIRAZ Interim dividend declared and paid of
RS A% 18.01 18.0 cents (2022: 25.0 cents)
(ZZE=——4F :2501L) per share 23,320 32,388
REBEREEZD K Final dividend proposed after the end of
RHEARR B F A% 40.011L the reporting period of 40.0 cents
(ZZT = —4F : 40.011) (2022: 40.0 cents) per share 51,821 51,821
PG REREREE DK Special final dividend proposed after
1R R ERRS B A% 5.0 the end of the reporting period of
(- —F : |) 5.0 cents (2022: Nil) per share 6,477 -
81,618 84,209
RSB HA Sk 14 R 5 TR WO S HA AR 2, The final and special final dividends proposed after the
T R SR HA AR B Y SR 7T SR 45 HA SR end of the reporting period have not been recognised
2 o as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23T MeER =) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) RE (&) (b) Dividends (continued)
(i) BAL—MERFE » YRAFEZ (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
EMRENESAQATERREN Company attributable to the previous financial
35 year, approved and paid during the year

BN E—BREE WK Final dividend in respect of the previous

REEZERIRA financial year, approved and paid

REAAR B &% 40.01L during the year, of 40.0 cents

(ZZ= = —4F : 60.011) (2022: 60.0 cents) per share 51,821 77,731
MEBEE-_T-_—F=F=+—Hit In respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31
FEREKEEmMS N2 —%F March 2021, there was a difference of $11,000
JE B 75 3R 3= P 3 BE A R B AR B B K between the final dividend disclosed in the 2021 annual
FERARXNeREZHANEZRE financial statements and the amount approved and paid
11,0007T  REEREBF ZRL during the year which represented dividends
FELERAITEBREMEITA attributable to new shares issued upon the exercise of
BHFEARBGERS HE_T— share options, before the closing date of the Register of
ZHE=ZRA=1T—HIEFELEILE Members. There was no such difference for the year
o ended 31 March 2022.
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23EFFMENM &) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) B (c) Share capital

& e i R EE
Number of Number of
EIES MBI
Fix TFix
‘000 ‘000
EERA Authorised:
BREE TEAR Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
HEA—H At 1 April 129,553 129,553 129,533 129,533
IRIEEEAREST 2134778 Shares issued under share
i (HEEG)) option scheme (note (i) - _ 20 20
R=A=+—H At 31 March 129,553 129,553 129,553 129,553

FiE Note:

(i) BEERESERTRG (i) Shares issued under share option scheme

BHE_T-_=F=-A=+—HLEFE" I During the year ended 31 March 2023, no options were exercised.
ERBIRIEATE -
BE-_T-_—_F=A=+—BItFE 7 During the year ended 31 March 2022, options were exercised to
RN A 720,000 08 FBAR A RE AR B & subscribe 20,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of
171F + (B3 A342,0007T © H #120,000 7T $342,000, of which $20,000 was credited to share capital and the
B FF AR - i #%8322,000 7T Bl 5 A BR balance of $322,000 was credited to the share premium account.
1335 (B AR o 3 BB BT 5E 1(q)i) FT# 51 B & &1 $34,000 has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
BR - H 34,000 T2 A EARREEE AR premium account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
s ER o note 1(q)(ii).

KRIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 61



B S ¥R AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRBHAEEEDIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

23 WE MR (7 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d)EENMHEFAZE (d) Nature and purpose of reserves
() BRDHE (i) Share premium

162

B aERNEARIAQTER
MBERE(BIFRREHRE -

BE 5 k18

BE 5 8 B 4 1 B o B TR 3 S A Y
MBMRAELNMEINEEZHE -
PE N R R R T (WSS
BRI

(iii) A B ER

RE-NANANFEN—EEE A&
EIEE e NI IRN 7 ANy
RE - ARBMEANMB QR
BREFEBBARRC ETRN
EENHBEEIAKXRFNHA
Bk e

RRABIMBA RGBT AR E(1981
FRAEE)MHEE - BREEERE
1981 FERRIE) » A RRIMBAR
BAl A AD K °

A ETIERT - RRATEE
A BSRE KR EBR S HIEL
DK

(@) PR B 3K A8 R AT B
HIAIME %

b) REEMAZEREERAM IR
HEEEEDETRAREN
it (B AR E AR

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Company’s Bye-laws and the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 1(u).

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former
holding company of the Group became a subsidiary of
the Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company has
been credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.
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23FXMEEMR &) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d)RBEHNEENMAE (&) (d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) BB (iv) Capital reserve

1R IR P 5E 1(a)i) P8 s A B ) A
B B ST A ER A B0 B BT BOR RE AR
B ERTARERBERITER
BRERNETEHNAABED

#B e

(v) TR E (LR
THMEEMEEFEERENRE
BRNMEEARENERETE
EEEANAABEZS -

(e) BBE AR

AEBERBEANTIEANERRER
SENBAELE  KMEZTEER
Bk FAERE A R EAR LA & B A A
ESmBEN TN BERSKRREHD
| WAHMH AR E SR

AEBBEGERRINEREELEAR
B NEARBRSBEKFAESR
B = AR [0 g B AR E AN AR P SR 4
MEZNREME ZMIEGFE I
HEEERNEE M ABREARRE

R-TE-_=FM_T_—_F=A=+
— B ARQERE T EA B R A
EAREENEEERFER -

R-BE-_=F=A=+—H &%
ERNRTERERBESNESEED
4 $646,758,0000t( — T = — F
557,102,000 7T) °

The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(q)(ii).

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the fair value change arising on the revaluation of
property held for own use upon transfer to investment
property.

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholder, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

The Group had bank deposits and cash and cash

equivalents as at 31 March 2023 amounting to
$646,758,000 (2022: $557,102,000).
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29 e ERMAREE 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(@) eREKRSERAAEE (a) Financial risk management and fair value

AEBEBAELERBARTARE
& RBESNEERR - AEELHE
LR R AR R A EEELRR
P 5% A B 2 R BB B B BROR AE R 4
SEREFIR T e

ZERBREE TR A EEN S R E E
BERMEPIERE -

() EERR
HAEEME - EERKRENZEHA
RPGHBFEEENEBMABRASE
B BEENER RNEEHNEE
[RU B2 3 22 3R B UK AR R EL i UK
KEREMERMEE - AR AEEH
RGEFRAEERBEERRER
EMRT B ASEEERREIR
TEFRERESMEZEEM2EE
B2 BR o BRI EEKMESIZ
& B DA T AS B DA B2 2 3 B9 B RS R
BB BE_TE ==
A=+—BNM=-ZE==—F=A=+
—H - ZEEREeNEBREEBEL
TEKX

RBEHR - EERRLELIRE
MEAEHBER - FERBRERR
RAEBBRARTEREREEDN
FRE SR © BRMIFE26 A& AR R
A DM B ARNRITEREERR
HHBERI > REBELARHELT
AEMA L ARBARERRR
EPELR ©

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and
other financial assets. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk. Based on the historical experience of the collection
of the rental deposits from the landlords and the
financial position of the landlords, the directors assessed
that expected credit loss of these deposits as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 was insignificant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Except for
the financial guarantee given by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 26, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.
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2 epEREEENARKRER)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)

() ERmEREERAAEEE)
() FERR (&)
(1) FE Y BR FRRN EL At R UK

WL E UK BR ZX A0 H h FE UK F
T REERRBRAY —&E
MR ESRELTENERR
BHREFHEZEZEREEF
e AREBEeERIHERA
X BV HA R 3R A 42 8% I IR B
MEREN TEEEBREF
REFPEEMTLERENN
BER - REAEERERER
B B 5 B 5 Y JE AR BORD E Ath
JEW A3 0E E75 B RNEH -
EEBBRT  AEBTEE
KE PR -

HREFHNRIESMEE.
AREWSEBEENTLE
BRI 18 Uk BR 2R R0 L b 18 Uk 3Kk /Y
FEEEE BB EWETE AT
BE- Al ZEEHBRNEIE
EETIERN GHE-_ZT =
=FR_FE-_—_F=RA=+—
AIEFERN - AEBEWAFE
LT B R RN EL ) i LS SR T R f]
BRI -

NEE - NEZBXEREAFR
NENZEERFPTAEXE
AEEFEH - AEBAB/E
B INEIMEINEIN
TFTeENEBWREREET
BRE BEGHES - 5L
EEBREHEE  #HEZ—
T =—FR-ZFZ=F=H=
+—HLEFENSEEFHE
TARERE BOBMERAZ
BE N ET - B UL 30K B E R
SR E b W R T R S 18
A -

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

(1) Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on customers of
catering service requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade and other receivables
are due within 30 to 75 days to certain customers to
which the Group provides catering services.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

ECL rates of the trade and other receivables are
assessed to be minimal, because of the customers’
good background and reputation and no past
default history. Thus, the loss allowance provision
for such balances was insignificant and no loss
allowance provision was recognised in respect of the
trade and other receivables for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022.

No credit evaluations are performed to retail
customers that are made in cash, Octopus or via
major credit cards. The Group’s trade receivables in
connection with sales settled through payment
platforms such as Octopus, Alipay or WeChat Pay
are with high credit rating and no past due history.
These assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of
high-credit rating issuers during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022, and accordingly, no loss
allowance was recognised in respect of the trade
and other receivables.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

2 emEREENARKRER)

() ERmEREERAAEEE)
() FERR (&)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)
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Q) b e BEE
BEHRESNEBTHAARY
EEFRNABET  ERXX
SHFNEEFRRL  BE
EYXY TEHMEMEEEET
5% e

ARERBHEER+ _EARE
HEEBEENSRRRELE
FHEBRER  KFE - AK
BRREBEFNEERRK

BEEAEE BARREK
ER%E -

(i) RBEEZER

AEEANERNCEERARRAR
SNReEBIE BRERSAR
B e IR B M EE B A TR A
ReBR(MREFEBBRLR
REELR BFESRKATNESRS
EHEAZ) - REBMBK R E ME
ERPEESHFR UWREEFEE
AW T (NF) - ARRAESRF
NIRRT HEE AREGARS
REEAEREREANGERES
AmREBARERNORBER

CER

TR TAKENSRABERR
EHMROFBANHR - ZF R
BERUITOURFTRRESRE (8
FRART M R 3 (IEIE ) IR
HHR AR X E @B A F) A
RAGSEANNZREAHRE -

(2) Other financial assets

Investments in debt securities are normally issued by
corporate with sound credit standing. Given their
high credit standing, management does not expect
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group measures loss allowances for debt
securities at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs and
assessed there was no significant loss allowance and
change in credit risk for the debt securities.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board of directors
when the borrowings exceed certain pre-determined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirement and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.
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20 eMEBRERMAAEE®) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
QesrmEREERAANEERE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) REVEREME (&) (i) Liquidity risk (continued)

—T=F
2023
—FNAE MFEARE
RHEE BRenses —FR EmFERN EBERFEA
More than More than

Total oneyear  two years
contractual but but
Carrying  undiscounted Within  lessthan  less than More than
amount cash flow  oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years
T F T T Tt T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B EESE  Rental deposits received 1,972 1,972 1,958 14 - -
JEfTBEZRAIEEL  Creditors and accrued
ER expenses 376,664 376,664 376,664 - - =
HEAR Lease liabilities 1,126,453 1,189,208 420,674 320,362 396,248 51,924

1,505,089 1,567,844 799,296 320,376 396,248 51,924

o —F

2022
STRAARMERER —FHRE WMERE
EnEHE —FAN EWNFA BRFA

More than  More than

Total one year  two years
contractual but but
Carrying  undiscounted Within  lessthan  less than More than
amount cash flow  oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years
T F F T Tt T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2WESES Rental deposits received 1,973 1,973 204 1,769 - -
fEfTBEZRAIESE  Creditors and accrued
#H expenses 320,347 320,347 320,347 - - -
HEAR Lease liabilities 1,186,230 1,252,654 415209 322,693 440,601 74,151

1,508,550 1,574,974 735760 324,462 440,601 74,151
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

2 emEREENARKRER)

(a) TREREER A AEEE)
(i) & ¥ @ b (iii) Currency risk

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

AEEESNESRREIERE
NAEBREEBNEBIEER
BN B REMNE ML S E
BE ROEFERRASMNBSEE
VoSl BEERRMNERTRRE
ETRARE - MREIREHE K
BEN  AEEEEVERRAR
PEREEINE - AR F AR
B AR R AKF o

TRFBAGE BN E R AR
ENEEEE AN EEHAED
EHRABEELRBEMELENER
RBREE - BREERES RN
BEXMERERER - FARE
TEEAREENIIBERRE
BINEERB M B MR AEERN
EZ&-

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

SNE R B RRE
(A EEDIR)
Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E=4F —E__F
2023 2022
0 ARE =i AR
United United
NEIES NEIES
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
T T T Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

RITFEZ LIRS M Bank deposits and cash and
NEeZEEW cash equivalents 46,999 35,066 50,991 54,811
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29 eEBERMAREE®) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

(a) TREREER A AEEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iE¥RMRE (&) (iii) Currency risk (continued)

TRIVRALE B2 R AR The following table indicates the change in the Group’s

BiafAEAEB AR ENRR profit after taxation and retained profits that would

WEZXRREMREEE (REM arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has

EHMEAREFSERFTE) MHIR significant exposure at the end of the reporting period

VEME o TEEHE - RRNBITESE had changed at that date, assuming all other risk

TCHEMA - REETEEEITT BT variables remained constant. In this respect, as Hong

e BB EREANEE o Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, the

Group does not expect any significant movements in
the United States dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange
rate.

—EF=F —=_—

2023 2022
SNESTER  BREE 1B R A R INEETER  BREIEIREA K&
=5 IREE i A =5, RE & A
(F&) #mCrd) (R #m,Crd)

Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after
in foreign  taxation and in foreign  taxation and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
T T
$'000 $'000
ARHEE Renminbi 5.0% 1,116 5.0% 2,741
(5.0%) (1,116) (5.0%) (2,741)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

2 emEREENARKRER)

() TREEEER A AEBE#E)

(iv) 2 REE (iv)Fair values

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

170

NARBEEER
TREJNAREBRNHBERRREE
EEFAENETRTARTE %
FeRITACBA(BEEMBRE
ERHDE 1302 FEFE I FARE
W=EARFEER AEE2RIA
TEETARTE AR A B A #
REEMERME EMETAAE
BFfEBEMERBHEAR

- FERMBE: REAE—E
FNE(NHEREELBER
FEAHAERRMISNAREH
BERE) R EAAREE-

- FEMMGE: - ERE_BR
BABRIREF - ERNHAE
RPAE) LEREENTASE
R AERAERAREE T
B R A B RTS8
BHEAE -

- F=-EBRMHE: RBERSA
BERBABRFERABE-

BE—_T-_=ER-_T-_—_F=A
=+ HIEFE TESRTAR
BERAREBEERE R H LR TS
%o REEMBREEAREBERE
B2 B IR B 3RS B R ERR
BHEED -

FHIZA T EBEIRN T TAN L
TIEE
REBIRK ARSI HKARARN S
BITEAMEESRE BERN=-Z=
=FR-_EBE-__F=ZA=+—HHW
DREEDHITK o

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfers between financial instruments
in different levels. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2023 and 2022.
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29 eEBERMAREE®) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
(b)y£@m T EMEHR (b) Categories of financial instruments

EHMEE Financial assets
REHEKAFTENSREE Financial assets measured at amortised cost
—JEWEER - e REWHEER — Debtors, deposits and lease receivables 140,579 191,717
—RITEZRRRSMBESEMEY - Bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents 646,758 557,102
787,337 748,819
EA =N Financial liabilities
TR S PR AR SR AR At amortised cost or cost
-gllHeEs — Rental deposits received 1,972 1,973
- BRI ERT & — Creditors and accrued expenses 376,664 320,347
-HEBE — Lease liabilities 1,126,453 1,186,230
1,505,089 1,508,550
25 K i 25 COMMITMENTS
RZBEZ=F=A=+—BREMHXK Capital commitments for acquisition of other property, plant
EUBRRARBEENEBEEE MY and equipment outstanding at 31 March 2023 not provided
¥ BESTRENERAENT for in the financial statements were as follows:

B4 Contracted for 351 11,443
EREERETL Authorised but not contracted for 9,899 15,573
10,250 27,016
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26 BAR 26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RZZEZ=F=A=+—8 " X2"EZER® At 31 March 2023, guarantees are given to banks by the
ETE2ENBARESRITEREEmMMR Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
RITIEL IR o wholly-owned subsidiaries.
RMEEAR  EE TR AN ARSREIEL As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
ERZHMBIREER - RSEHK - K consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
NERIBEZIEREBENRKNESENAE Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
Bt BB B) 2 4R ER A 4 R 15 & %H 88,930,000 liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
JTT(=—ZT = — 4% :87,954,0007T) ' EH % under the guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn
ERAEEBEREER - down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the

guarantees, being $88,930,000 (2022: $87,954,000).

RR R 2 R R M SR A AR WA - The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
REZREARBEEEAEZMITE  MA respect of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be
BERPER - reliably measured and there is no transaction price.

2T EXRMBMARZH 27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AR RREM IS T IHBENR S R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
AN REEHETT THEREB RS elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@) EaPH 7P EE - BASREIE A B B (a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid to
e BENANARESENANIE - e the Company’'s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
WHEEFATEIRA R (2EW=F remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
5(b)) °

bL)EXFEERN KRR —KHEBRQ AR (b) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
BEvERAR(E D) BA—EY property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony”). Hibony is a
% o & 3/ | Pengto International Limited company beneficially owned by Pengto International
(ZrelBERBEEBERS) Em Limited (@ company beneficially owned by Mr Dennis Lo
AW BRBEEABBEYHNE Hoi Yeung). In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
E-FRAEENERHEEETENUR director of Hibony. Depreciation of the right-of-use assets
HEBERNEEASD A A1,859,000 and interest expense on lease liabilities incurred during the
t(=—F = = F:1,8750007 ) M year amounted to $1,859,000 (2022: $1,875,000) and
273,0007T (ZZF = —4F : 332,0007T) ° $273,000 (2022: $332,000) respectively.
RZZEZ=%=A=+—H ' x5H At 31 March 2023, the Group recognised right-of-use
SRR EREECENRAEEEAS assets and lease liabilities of $7,280,000 (2022: $9,139,000)
7,280,00070 ( =% — = 4 : 9,139,000 and $8,715,000 (2022: $10,842,000) respectively.

JT ) 18,715,000 ( — & = —
10,842,0007T) ©
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27EXRMBE RS (&) 27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(O EXREERN - ARAF—KHBA T M (c) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
HEEERERAT ([HEDHEA—E property from New Champion International Limited (“New
ME - RERBERBGEE  BEAL Champion”). New Champion is a company beneficially
ERERGKEBE=ER © I 4 owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis
HEBEELEATENES  FREEHN and his family members. In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
FHEEENENREEGENEE Yeung is a director of New Champion. Depreciation of the
B9 Rl 52124000t(ZF = =4 : right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities
2,146,000 ) A1282,000t( ZF = = incurred during the year amounted to $2,124,000 (2022:
4 1 341,0007T) © $2,146,000) and $282,000 (2022: $341,000) respectively.
RZZEZ=%=A=+—H ' ~5H At 31 March 2023, the Group recognised right-of-use
DRERERAEEEARTEEEAEAR assets and lease liabilities of $8,550,000 (2022: $10,675,000)
8,550,000 70 (=& = — 4 : 10,675,000 and $9,051,000 (2022: $11,145,000) respectively.

7 ) #9,051,000T( = & = = £ :

11,145,0007T) ©

) EBERZEENCEHmRANNE (d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

At connected transactions

BE(CETREDFEVAZHNES - 4 The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c)

(o) Ko () TERAEE 5 32 5 i K B i@ AT above constitute connected transaction as defined in

5 REBEZRRCEMHAADE14A Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required

ERT REZTeREANBERS by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the

—EIREL IR ER o section “Connected transactions” of the Report of the
Directors.
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28 B & T M #5 | ¥
(a) 2RI R

28 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(a) Company-level statement of financial position

ERBEE Non-current assets
YN Interests in subsidiaries (a) 512,810 581,088
RENEE Current assets
JE Ui B RN EL A E LT 3k Trade and other receivables 79,675 88,071
RITERREE Bank deposits and cash and cash

BEEEY equivalents 1,156 1,001

80,831 89,072

REEE Current liability
JESBR ZR AN E At FE ST X Trade and other payables 31,674 30,881
RBEEFE Net current assets 49,157 58,191
BEERE NET ASSETS 561,967 639,279
EARNGEE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28(b)
&% A Share capital 129,553 129,553
i Reserves 432,414 509,726
EREEE TOTAL EQUITY 561,967 639,279

EEEN-T-SEAASTERE
WHFAHL, -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 June 2023.

‘B IR
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Lo Fai Shing Francis
#ITEE TTBAEE,

Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Bt 5t (a) - M A R AE RS IR IR AT BR B0 3F
WG - BB R RMNFEBHR
F177 %1788 o 7N 5 [ I £ F ] fY
BAREAE AR o

Note (a): The interests in subsidiaries represent the unlisted shares stated
at cost and amounts due from subsidiaries. Details of the
principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 177 and 178. The
Group does not have any subsidiary which has a material non-
controlling interest.
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28 RAFREMERH (&)

(b) B EEEDE B R
TREFIARB AR ERAK D E
WE I EEIR A B

28 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(continued)
(b) Company-level statement of changes in equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the reporting period are set out below:

KA BHEE HABRSR EXEE
Share Share  Contributed Capital
capital  premium surplus reserve
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000

REBF
Retained
profits
F
$'000

T
$'000

R=ZB=—-F At 1 April 2021
mA—A 129,533 54,832 28,182 7,693 327,886 548,126
FEZEHERALE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (77,731)  (77,731)
AEFZBERNWPE  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (32,388) (32,3898)
AER 5 Profit for the year - - - - 200,099 200,099
IRIBEAMEETBI%4T  Shares issued under share
A% 1 option scheme 23()i) 20 356 - (34) - 342
BITEMR Issue expenses - ) _ _ _ )
KA Lapse of share options - - - (800) - (800)
IR EE AR Equity-settled share-based
BEBNT S transactions 23(0)(i) - - - 1,636 - 1,636
R=B=-ZF At 31 March 2022
=A=+—H 129,553 55,183 28,182 8,495 417,866 639,279
RZEZZF At 1 April 2022
mA—A 129,553 55,183 28,182 8,495 417,866 639,279
FFEECHERRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (51,821) (51,821)
AEFZEERAIME  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (23,3200 (23,320)
REEHEF Profit for the year = - - - 166 166
KB Lapse of share options - - - (3,097) - (3,097)
RSB R LABRY  Equity-settled share-based
BEBROTS transactions 23(c)(i) - - - 760 - 760
R-B-=F At 31 March 2023
=H=+-—H 129,553 55,183 28,182 6,158 342,891 561,967
29 A% EIR 29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

BRESAVBHRREMIL T FTANER
Sh AT RHMERRBEENEATIR -

EENMEPREREZRD RARPBE R FF
RIREIR S - BRAFISEHRMEE23(b)

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the following significant events took
place subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a

final dividend and a special final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 23(b).
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JEMHERKREBE_S_=F=

R=E+—HILFEENMHERT - #
EAMREURERNHTE

BEAUBHRERTIER  BESHMAE
ERMEHEERE_FT _=F=A="1—
BIEFERARER  TORBEAM B HREK
AT MR RLER] - 5 LR E
EBE TR EEREEABIIRR -

(BEEMBREENDF TR REEA )

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

(BREFERDE 1 SRIEFT [ FHRR I - nBEIFRERENE S )

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as

current or non-current

(BREFEINDE 1 FMCEBY B REER) BBEBRAFE 2SR [(FLHEZ LA

At EBE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2023
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

AT HEIs 2 1%
Fr 45 B & 5t EA R A2 Ak
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

—E=F—H—H
1 January 2023

—E-=F—A—H

1 January 2023

—E-=F—Hf—H

1 January 2023

Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

(BEGERDFERIER] [ @ HE - Bt 1ha BB RIFR - BathitmEs ]

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors:

Definition of accounting estimates

(BREFERDE12RERT 3 H - EEXZELAEEME B AELAEH]

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising

from a single transaction

AEBE IR GE LS R H A5 A HIRE
V& BRI AL AEERERAE
LETIAAEEHRAMBHRRELS

=/ 48
-7

31LEREF

HRBE_T_=F=A=+—HILHFE
MR HIRS S HEEERET TER]
MO LBRBFREBAFHOINRAETT B
B o BRFITHNME22 -

—E=F—H—H
1 January 2023

—E-=%—H—H
1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

31 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the amendment in legislation relating to long
service payment during the year ended 31 March 2023, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year's presentation. Further details are disclosed in note 22.



TEME L
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Name of company

BEERBRAF

Benley Development Limited

AE R BERABR AR

Fairwood (Shenzhen)
Development Limited

Fairwood (BVI) Management
Limited*

Fairwood (BVI) Management
Limited*

Fairwood B.V.I. Limited*

Fairwood B.V.I. Limited*

Fairwood Consolidated
Investments Limited*
Fairwood Consolidated
Investments Limited*

RRERE (E2) BRARA
Fairwood Fast Food
(Management) Limited

AREREERAT]

Fairwood Fast Food Limited

Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited*

Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited*

VEERBRLA

Great Choice Development Limited
BMAREERERBR AR
Guangzhou Fairwood Catering
Management Limited*

EEaii vy
R
Place of incorporation/
establishment

and operation

B
Hong Kong
&k
Hong Kong

HBRARRES
BB

The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

ERAEARES
N

The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBBARES
£

The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

ER

Hong Kong

EBRARES
BB

The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

E

Hong Kong
HEIA
Mainland China

& AR
Particulars of
issued/registered
capital

2[R

2 shares

10,000 B A& 15
10,000 shares

1IREE
([E )
1 share

of US$1

579,437 5%
HE{E0.01 EThkH
579,437 shares of
US$0.01 each

1REE
[E )
1 share

of US$1

215
2 shares

100 fix & 38 K 579,437
IR R R D
100 ordinary shares and
579,437 non-voting
deferred shares

1REE

1& ik
1 share

of US$1

2D

2 shares

AE#16,000,000
RMB16,000,000

AREFFER D
Bak
Percentage of
EIEE )

by the Company
B i3
Direct Indirect
_ 100%
_ 100%
100% -
100% -
100% -
_ 100%
_ 100%
- 100%
_ 100%
- 100%

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Principal activity

MERE

Property investment
REZKR
Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REZK

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

BEREIER
Restaurant licences
holding

REBRRER

Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants

BERE

Trademark holding

MERE

Property investment
maEEREE
Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants
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FEWE QA
Principal Subsidiaries

y B#fT/ AR AIFTFAR (R
NIEL R R E M ERFFS Bl
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
establishment issued/registered shares held
Name of company and operation capital by the Company Principal activity
HE il
Direct Indirect

VEERBRAA N 2fR Az oD - 100% MERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
AL HERERAT BB 2fR Az R - 100% NERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERBERARAF &g 288k - 100% NERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERERBRAF 5 2B tn - 100% NERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EEEREBRAR EiE 28R 1A - 100% NERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RYRREREBRAT* hE R, 22,700,0005 7T - 100% EEEHREE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Mainland China US$22,700,000 Operation of a chain of

Limited* fast food restaurants
BRERBR AT Eit 2iftn - 100% NERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ABERERAF 0 2B ftn - 100% MELRE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RBERERAF 30 2 iR fn - 100% NERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERERRA EE 21RAx D - 100% MERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
BHEBRBRAR 0 2B fn - 100% MERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
FHRERARAF Bt 217 - 100% eSS
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

* WIHARBHETMEEMBETHAR - *  Companies not audited by KPMG

@ R-—ZT-—=F=A=+—8 WIkHEE (a) At 31 March 2023, the financial statements of the subsidiaries

BTN BB E TR E A R M B HRE not audited by KPMG reflect total revenue and total net assets
PGB AR FEELENLG - 554 constituting approximately 5% (2022: 5%) and 4% (2022: 8%)
5% (=T ==F :5%) R4% (=T == respectively of the related consolidated totals.
F :8%) o

(b) BB AT EEREETEEER - (b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.
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AEBLFHBME
FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(AEEEFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-= —E-— —E-FTF
2023 2022 2021 2020
(B%E) (BE) (Bf$7E) (BI3E)
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
T T For Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
E Results:
WA Revenue 3,024,152 2,881,942 2,646,469 3,030,198 2,970,524
i g A Profit from operations 83,362 80,208 175,223 110,075 215,204
RE Bk A Finance costs (31,698) (32,404) (36,824) (37,995) (32)
R B B S Profit before taxation 51,664 47,804 138,399 72,080 215,172
FR1E%: Income tax (6,784) (5,164) 15,218 (11,213) (35,225)
RARERRR Profit attributable to equity
JFEAG % A shareholders of the
Company 44,880 42,640 153,617 60,867 179,947
EEMEE: Assets and liabilities:
REWE - Hi¥E - Investment properties, other
BEFRELEE property, plant and equipment
+ith and leasehold land 402,659 413,297 454,696 513,111 518,633
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,033,885 1,078,744 1,110,609 1,433,611 -
FEM AR &K Lease receivables = 609 2,768 - -
GES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
BEfffEske Rental deposits paid 68,483 68,797 72,737 76,732 68,517
EMerEE Other financial assets - - - 15,821 19,825
R IEEE Deferred tax assets 4,070 5,336 3,935 22 44
MBEE Current assets 792,447 769,484 802,293 668,620 667,788
EEHE Total assets 2,302,545 2,337,268 2,448,039 2,708,918 1,275,808
mEIAE Current liabilities (817,224)  (782,322)  (811,902)  (915,652)  (419,527)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (804,692)  (840,710)  (858,301) (1,072,460) (78,603)
BEERE Net assets 680,629 714,236 777,836 720,806 777,678

M ARNE =T NFMA—BREAC(EBMER

Note:

SEADF16F-[HE] AEECHABAE
FHERE S S ETIR o RIBZERIMEEGFR -
B BRI B R R MTSERENTE - R
BE_ZT-NFOA-HNEREEENEEER
B - HRFEERARETIRERER  A5E
ERFEMAFZEREEE EAENBHRAELR
FEER  WHERBREEMIRTE MR
I ATH R AR E M A BAORREREZEERN
HEEBR - —T-NFUA—HA - BHFERE

FiEARRRSIAR o

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1 April
2019, the Group has changed its accounting policies in respect of the lessee
accounting model. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the
standard, the changes in accounting policies were adopted by way of
opening balance adjustments to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as at 1 April 2019. After initial recognition of these assets and
liabilities, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Prior to 1 April 2019, figures were stated in
accordance with the policies applicable in those years.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AKBEMENREN >
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2023

ik BE AR R
Location Existing use Term of lease

H 72 8 HHj
i)

il

ESr

M EN

251035 % 10405%

Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2 Shops Medium-term
Lowu Commercial Plaza

Guangchang South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

180



jt'l_mg FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED AREFEKEBEHRA A
2/F TRP Commercial Centre 18 Tanner Road North Point Hong Kong

Fairwood Z5iLARSE185REREmEPL21E Tel 2856 7111 Fax 2165 1908

MIX

Paper from
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